
Adult Commissioning Committee  
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Adult Commissioning Committee to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Sian Roxborough 
Monitoring Officer  

 
The council is currently holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to 
maintain the safety of the public, staff and councillors. 
 
The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process. 
 
Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 
 
Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place. 
 
Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 10 March 2021 
 
TIME:  2.00 pm 
 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  
 

 

3   Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 13th January 2021  
 

(Pages 1 - 8) 

 ITEMS FOR DECISION  
 

 

4   Salford Market Development Strategy  
 

(Pages 9 - 34) 

 ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE  
 

 

5   Finance Report  
 

(Pages 35 - 42) 

6   Mental Health Update  
 

(Pages 43 - 68) 

7   Cancer Performance Update  (Pages 69 - 78) 

Public Document Pack

https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


 

 
8   Scheduled Care Update  

 
(Pages 79 - 88) 

 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION  
 

 

9   Adult Commissioning Report  
 

(Pages 89 - 94) 

10   Any Other Business  
 

 

11   Dates of Future Meetings  
 
2021/22 Proposed meeting schedule: 
 

 Wednesday 12 May at 14:00; 

 Wednesday 09 June at 14:00; 

 Wednesday 24 July at 14:00; 

 Wednesday 08 September at 14:00; 

 Wednesday 13 October at 14:00; 

 Wednesday 10 November at 14:00; 

 Wednesday 12 January 2022 at 14:00; 

 Tuesday 01 February 2022 at 14:00 – please note the change in 
pattern due to a clash with the Budget review meeting of the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Board at which all members of 
SCC Cabinet present and respond to questions on the proposed 
budget for their portfolio area 

 Wednesday 09 March 2022 at 14:00 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Carol Eddleston 
Tel No: 0161 793 3316 
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE ADULTS’ 

COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE HELD VIA MS TEAMS 

Wednesday 13th January 2021 14:00 – 16:00 

Present 

Cllr Jim Cammell (JC)   Executive Support Member for Social Care &  

     Mental Health - SCC 

Mr David Flinn (DF)   Neighbourhood Lead – CCG 

Mrs Joanne Hardman (JH)  Chief Finance Officer - SCC 

Cllr Bill Hinds (BH)  Lead Member for Finance & Support Services - SCC 

Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Statutory Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for 

Housing & Neighbourhoods - CCG 

Dr David McKelvey (DMcK)  Neighbourhood Lead - CCG 

Mrs Charlotte Ramsden CR)  Strategic Director People - SCC 

Dr Tom Regan (TR)   Clinical Director for Commissioning - CCG  

Cllr Gina Reynolds (GR) Lead Member for Adult Services, Health & Wellbeing - 

SCC – Chair 

Mrs Karen Proctor (KP)  Director of Commissioning - CCG 

Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT)   Medical Director - CCG – Co-chair 

Mrs Francine Thorpe (FT)   Director of Quality and Innovation - CCG  

Mr David Warhurst (DW)   Chief Finance Officer - CCG 

 

In Attendance 

Ms Catherine Connors (CC) Principal Officer Welfare Rights and Debt Advice 

Service - SCC 

Ms Emma Reid (ER)   Joint Head of Planning and Performance CCG/SCC 

Mr Harry Golby (HG)   Assistant Director of Commissioning - CCG 

Ms Gillian Mclauchlan (GM) Deputy Director of Public Health – CCG/SCC 

Mr Judd Skelton (JS) Assistant Director, Integrated Commissioning – 

CCG/SCC 

Mr Stephen Tilley (ST) Senior Service Improvement Manager - CCG 

Mr Paul Walsh (PW) Assistant Director, Integrated Commissioning –    

CCG/SCC 

Dr Anne Whittington (AW)  Public Health Speciality Registrar - SCC 

 

Apologies 

Mr Steve Dixon (SD)   Chief Accountable Officer – CCG 

Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT)  Medical Director - CCG – Co-chair 

Ms Claire Vaughan (CV)  Head of Medicines Optimisation – CCG 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



1. Apologies for Absence 

The above apologies were noted. 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest in any of the items on the agenda. 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 11th November 2020 

The minutes of the meeting held on 11th November 2020 were approved as a correct record 

subject to the amendment of David Warhurst’s initials from ‘DH’ to ‘DW’ in the list of those 

present. 

 

Councillor Reynolds took the opportunity to express her disappointment and frustration that 

there were a number of Adult Social Care providers who had still not implemented pay 

increases to their care staff. This meant there were still 46 care workers on the Supported 

Living Contract who had not had an increase to the ‘Real Living ‘ wage of £9.30 per hour and 

there were 370 care workers who were still not receiving the increase of £9 per hour. 

 

4. Items for Decision 

 

4a. Finance Report 

DW presented an in-year update in relation to the financial performance of the adults’ 

element of the Integrated Fund. At November 2020, the adults’ element of the Integrated 

Fund was currently forecasting to be overspent by £0.6m. The last report proposed a £1.0m 

over spend position however with the mitigations that were put forward this would be a near 

breakeven position, but early sight of the position at the end of December indicated an 

improved position and it was anticipated that the report to the next meeting would show an 

overspend of £0.3m, which was actually a very good position and better than had been 

forecast at the start of the financial year. As stated at previous meetings he believed that this 

was a reflection of the integrated working across the partner organisations and the close 

cooperation of their Chief Finance Officers.  

Risks going forwards included: 

- Client income associated with ASC assessments faced a pressure of nearly £1m due 

o partly to the sadly high number of deaths at the start of the first wave, and 

o hospital discharge protocol and national funding which had led to a delay in 

assessments because focus had understandably been on creating capacity in the 

sector.  

- Significant number of empty beds in some of our residential placements 

o Rather than seeing a significant underspend in that area we were now seeing a 

corresponding overspend in domiciliary care. SCO were currently exploring the 

reasons for that,  

o We had been block booking about 75% of beds through Infection Control Funding 

but there was an ongoing risk to providers in sustaining their business. 

 

Page 2



DW explained that the report also sought endorsement of the recommendation by the 

Service and Finance Group that a number of contracts that were due to expire by the end of 

the financial year should be extended for a 12 months’ period as permitted in the original 

terms of the contracts. 

In February 2020 the committee had supported the 12 months extension to 31 March 2021 

of three separate contracts for Healthy Living Centres, with an option of an additional 12 

months’ extension as there was a planned review of wider VCSE investment across Salford. 

This review had not yet started due to COVID-19 and its impact on capacity to complete the 

work. 

Commissioners were also seeking the extension of three services provided by Age UK 

Salford: Hospital Aftercare, Dementia Support and Social Rehabilitation, in order to allow 

preparation of a full tendering exercise to identify a provider from 1st April 2022. All three 

contracts had been performing well and were considered a good service, with performance 

monitored on a quarterly basis. The main factor in the request to extend the contract by 12 

months was the knock-on effect COVID-19 had had on the capacity to finalise work in 

association with a robust service review. The outcome of the review would hold essential 

information which would ultimately impact the future commissioning intentions for services 

supporting Salford’s older population. 

Broomwell Healthwatch delivered remote interpretation of ECGs undertaken in Primary 

Care, removing the need for patients to attend hospital for some diagnostic tests to be 

undertaken. Broomwell Healthwatch also provided support to the Primary Care Diagnostics 

Hub (PCDU). A review of this hub was due to be undertaken but had not been completed 

due to a number of factors including COVID-19. Approval of 12 months’ extension would 

allow the review of the diagnostics hub to be undertaken and help to inform the 

commissioning arrangements of this service in the future. 

Finally, a contract for Salford CVS Tea and Tech with Age Friendly Salford, a consortium of 

three VCSE partners: Communities Together, Age UK Salford and Salford CVS was due to 

expire at the end of March. The partners had adapted their delivery during this challenging 

year, ensuring older Salford residents remained connected and supported throughout the 

pandemic. A 12 months’ extension would allow a comprehensive review to be undertaken in 

partnership with stakeholders and citizens, as well as exploring co-commissioning options 

with the integrated commissioning team, who also funded these partners to provide services 

for older people. The review would take the learnings from the contract in their current form, 

consider the impact of the adaptations made as a result of Covid-19, as well as reviewing 

best practice nationally, to formulate a valuable, comprehensive service offer that supported 

older people in Salford to age well. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the financial position of the adults’ 

services within the Integrated Fund for 2020/21 and agreed to: 

 Exercise the one year extension option in the Social Adventures, Langworthy 

Cornerstone and Big Life Healthy Living Contracts to 31/03/22; 

 Extend the current contract with Age UK for the three separately commissioned 

services of Hospital Aftercare, Social Rehabilitation and Dementia Support to 

31/03/22;  

 Approve the extension of the Broomwell Healthcare contract to 31/03/22, and 

 Exercise the one year extension option for Community Assets Tech and Tea 

contract to 31/03/22. 

Page 3



 

4b. Charging Assessment Team Capacity Within the Welfare Rights and Debt Advice 

Services (WRADAS) 

CC explained that the Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service (WRADAS) in the People’s 

Directorate provided specialist, independent welfare rights and debt advice to maximise the 

income of Salford citizens. The team was responsible for providing financial assessments for 

service users of non residential care services. This was a specialist role which required a 

holistic assessment of a person’s financial circumstances, establishing and calculating their 

personal disability related expenditure as well as identifying missing social security 

entitlements in order to accurately and fairly determine the charge payable towards the cost 

of their care. 

A review undertaken by WRADAS, Strategic Commissioners and Salford Care Organisation 

had identified a backlog of charging assessments awaiting completion, a situation 

complicated by the Covid Funding arrangements which had created 2 cohorts of service 

users determined by the date care package commenced. Currently the estimated average 

amount of time from a service user being referred for a charging assessment to the initial 

assessment visit/contact taking place was in the region of eight weeks, representing a 

potential loss of charging income to the integrated system of circa £260K per annum. 

An options appraisal had considered four approaches to address this and the Adults’ 

Commissioning Committee was being asked to agree option (d) to secure additional 

investment of £110k in order to enable recruitment of 3 x FTE Charging Assessors into the 

Charging Assessment Team to both reduce the backlog and sustain a shorter waiting time 

for assessments. The financial projections provided were based on a number of 

assumptions and indicated that, due to the extra client income anticipated to be collected as 

a result of the investment in additional staff to undertake charging assessments, the net 

funding ask could be reduced or potentially generate a surplus, depending on the reduction 

in waiting times achieved as a result of the additional investment. 

In the course of the discussion it was confirmed that the cost of the posts in question were 

charged back to the Integrated Fund via a separate Service Level Agreement, whereas the 

rest of the service was funded by the City Council’s core budget. CR explained that charging 

assessment itself was retained within the Council rather than transferring to the Integrated 

Care Organisation (ICO) because the Council could statutorily collect debt from people who 

didn’t pay whereas the ICO could not. 

 

Members were supportive of the ambition in the report and felt strongly that there was a 

moral obligation to ensure equity across service users, however, they would also be 

supportive of greater investment into the team if this would allow the recovery of even more 

of the £260k potential income missed. It was confirmed that existing delegation thresholds 

would allow CR and DW to approve investment into additional capacity beyond that 

requested in the report to today’s meeting.  

 

Performance in clearing the backlog and reducing the waiting time would be monitored 

closely and reported back to the committee. 

 

PW confirmed that there was a similar resource in the ICO which undertook Adult Social 

Care assessments for people in care homes and CR agreed that it would be timely to follow 

up on any opportunities to recovery outstanding residential care debts. 

Page 4



 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee approved investment of £110,035.87 per 

annum for a 24 month period in order to clear the backlog of charging assessments 

and to maintain service levels into the future at the reduced waiting time in order to 

provide an equitable service for all and secure ongoing income for the Integrated 

Fund in order to provide services. The committee was supportive of additional 

investment being put into the service if it would facilitate the recovery of an even 

greater proportion of the potential missed income. 

 

5. Items for Assurance 

 

5a. Adults Assurance Framework Report 

ER provided an update on the latest position in relation to the strategic annual plan for adults 

services and the risks associated with its delivery. The report formed part of the wider 

assurances to the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with regards to performance, locality 

assurance and strategic programme delivery and should be read in conjunction with other 

papers to this Committee including but not limited to any financial, quality and / or 

performance reports as well as any updates related to the COVID-19 pandemic response / 

recovery planning. 

The strategic annual plan for adults services was split across eight strategic programme 

areas that were designed to support delivery of a range of services. The 44 actions within 

these eight programme areas were largely on track, as outlined in Appendix 1 to the report. 

KP pointed out that the business plans and objectives had been reviewed and adjusted early 

on in the pandemic to take into account that people had been redeployed onto other things. 

This was a new report, intended to provide a strategic highlight and exceptions report and 

not replace the detailed subject area performance and monitoring reports. ER was 

particularly keen to get feedback on the format and content and a collective view on if, and 

when, the committee would like to receive this type of assurance update in future meetings.  

Members thanked ER for a clear and thorough report that served as a useful reminder of the 

plan that they had agreed to and considered that it would be appropriate to receive a twice 

yearly update. In terms of format they agreed it would be helpful for amber to be used to 

identify actions that were ‘in progress’ and green to identify those that had been ‘completed’.  

It was acknowledged that COVID-19 had resulted in a number of service reviews being 

deferred and contracts rolled over. Coming out of the pandemic there would be a significant 

amount of work to catch up on, leading to even greater patient and organisational workload 

in the longer term. The light touch business planning approach for 2021/22 would include 

discussions on all of this and the risk registers would be updated accordingly. As was clear 

from discussions earlier in the meeting there were a number of major commissioning reviews 

ahead. Subject to capacity and priorities there may need to be additional resource 

committee, or agreement that some needed to be rolled over again, or a decision taken that 

we live with the consequences if additional resources were not available. 

The committee discussed how best the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel might feed 

into and assist with the Adults Assurance Framework and it was agreed that, once the 

2021/22 business planning process stage had matured into a business plan, the panel could 

be invited to consider what business and commissioning priorities they would like to get 

updates on during the course of the year. 

Page 5



The Adults’ Commissioning Committee thanked ER for compiling the comprehensive 

update and noted the content of the report for assurance purposes, the specific 

updates provided for actions reported as ‘off-track’ and the updated risk position, 

acknowledging the work required to review and update the adults commissioning risk 

register. The committee asked for an update to be brought twice yearly and for the 

status of actions to be differentiated by the use of green for ‘completed’ and amber 

for ‘in progress’. 

 

6. Items for Information 

 

6a. Urgent and Emergency Care Update 

ST presented an update on work programmes relating to Urgent and Emergency Care as 

well as outlining performance against relevant NHS Constitutional Standards. 

Performance against the four hour 95% standard for Accident and Emergency (A&E) at 

Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT) was below target in 2020/21 at 82.86 (unvalidated 

April – November) and that placed us 4th across Greater Manchester. 

Attendances at A&E had decreased by 30.4% in November 2020 when compared with 

November 2019, attributed partly to people avoiding A&E at the start of the pandemic in 

particular and the concerted effort to connect patients with alternative more clinically 

appropriate services via the Pre-Emergency Department (ED) Registration Streaming, Call 

Before You Attend and Direct Booking into the ED from NHS 111. 

As reported previously Salford CCG continued to monitor and feedback on quality to 

Blackpool CCG as the Lead Commissioner for NHS 111. 

KP confirmed that there was a concerted effort across GM to ensure that there was 

consistent messaging about the fact that the NHS and the ED were still open for business. 

The new Intermediate Care Unit was on schedule for completion in October 2021 but 

intermediate care was not being flagged up as a risk at this moment in time. The fact that 

there were three separate units available for the city was quite helpful in allowing COVID-19 

positive patients and non positive patients to be kept separate, thereby reducing the risk of 

transmission. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the contents of the report. 

 

6b. Adult Commissioning Report 

JS and AW presented the report which aimed to provide an overview of a number of key or 

emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care. 

This month’s reported included: 

Mental Health Practitioners and Living Well – Investment had been agreed at November’s 

Primary Care Commissioning Committee which would see Mental Health Practitioners 

(MHPs) located in the Primary Care Networks (PCNs) aligned to the Living Well model with 

additional capacity in the Living Well Multi Disciplinary Team (MDT). The focus of the Living 

Page 6



Well model was on adults too complex for primary care and Improving Access to 

Psychological Therapies (IAPT) but who did not meet thresholds for secondary care. 

New Bereavement Counselling Pilot – People were increasingly presenting with prolonged, 

traumatic, disordered and/or complex grief and current provision was not available to meet 

this need. A pilot project was being launched to work alongside the existing GM 

bereavement information service/suicide bereavement support and test the most appropriate 

approach to meet need. 

ACTION: JS to provide a summary to all Councillors. 

Age Friendly Salford Update – As reported in the Finance Report, Age Friendly Salford was 

a consortium of 3 VCSE partners; Inspiring Communities Together, Age UK Salford and 

Salford CVS which were contracted to deliver the Community Assets and Tech and Tea 

contracts. Over the past 12 months they had adapted their delivery ensuring older residents 

remained connected and supported throughout the pandemic. The history of the Tech and 

Tea programme put many older residents in a good position to keep in touch with their 

friends and family online, as the programme had equipped them with the kit and digital skills 

needed. Currently, there were daily activities, via Zoom, to keep people engaged, whilst 

others were supported by phone, where appropriate. 

Sexual and Reproductive Health Services – an extension for the commissioning of the 

Sexual and Reproductive Health Services (SRHS) for Salford and Bolton provided by Bolton 

FT, had been approved by SCC Procurement Board in December. Service and Finance 

group and the Health and Care Commissioning Board were also supportive of an extension 

which was required due to the impact that COVID-19 had had on capacity to undertake a 

thorough review and robust procurement exercise. The SRHS were commissioned to 

provide clinical services, information, advice and support on sexual health matters including 

sexually transmitted infections (STIs), contraception, relationships and unplanned pregnancy 

for people over 13. 

AW confirmed that much of this work was done at a GM level and was quite forward 

thinking, with some aspects of the services already being delivered remotely, but she would 

be happy to ask colleagues to explore if there were any additional opportunities in this 

regard.  

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the report. 

 

7. Any Other Business 

 

NHS Nightingale Hospital North West – this facility had been set up during the first wave of 

COVID-19 at a time when other NHS services were stepped down, meaning that there were 

staff available to be redeployed at this facility. Currently NHS services were being 

maintained and so staff could not at this point in time be redeployed at the Nightingale. 

Access to vaccination centres – a lack of transport and personal finances was making it 

difficult for some of the city’s most vulnerable residents to access their vaccinations. This 

would be kept under review and followed up with residents who did not attend their allotted 

appointments. Initially the Clarendon Leisure Centre vaccination hub was set up there had 

been agreement to set up a black cab arrangement for the first cohort. However, concerns 

Page 7



had been raised about elderly and frail people been dropped off outside. Additionally it was 

not considered that this was financially sustainable. 

ACTION: DW to check status of the black cab arrangement.  

Status of vaccination programme across Salford – there was some confusion amongst older 

housebound residents about what, if any, action the needed to take in response to a letter 

from the NHS about vaccinations, specifically whether they needed to call the number 

provided to book an appointment or whether they would be contacted directly with a specific 

appointment at home. This would be raised at the Health Protection Board meeting on 14th 

January at which there would be communications reps who would hopefully take this 

forward. Across the city all the over 80s had now been invited and invitations were starting to 

be sent to the over 75s and over 70s. The Public Health team had been working with Salford 

Royal Foundation Trust to identify the relevant occupational groups of social and health care 

staff who should be called for a vaccination. 

ACTION: FT/GM to flag up issues of potential confusion especially among 

housebound residents about vaccination arrangements at Health Protection Board 

meeting. 

 

8. Dates of Future Meetings 

Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 14:00  

Wednesday 10 March 2021 at 14:00 

 

The meeting closed at 16:00. 

Page 8



 

Adult Commissioning Committee 

Part 1 

Agenda item number: 4  

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please bold)  

10 March 2021  

Report of: Lead Member for Adults Service, Health and Wellbeing 

Date of paper: 2 March 2021 

Subject: Salford Adult Social Care Market Shaping Strategy 

In case of query please contact: Paul Walsh – paul.walsh@salford.gov.uk 

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to) 

Priority Selection 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research:   

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services): 

x 

Children’s and Maternity Services:   

Primary Care:   

Enabling Transformation:   

 

Purpose of paper: To present for approval Salford Adult Social Care 
Market Shaping Strategy 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 

Further explanatory information required 

Question Answer 

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group? 

Improved Adult Social Care Service for 
Salford people. 

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated? 

None 

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated? 

None 

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them? 

None 

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper. 

None 

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper. 

 

None 

 
Footnote: 

 

Members of Adult Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once papers 
are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 10



 

   

 

 

 

Document development 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Public engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

Y   ASC Provider Market and Service 
User engagement during 2019 

Included in the ASC Market 
Shaping Strategy document 

Clinical engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

  NA   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)? 

Y    Included in the ASC Market 
Shaping Strategy document 

P
age 11



 

   

 

 

 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 

(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed)  

Y    Included in the ASC Market 
Shaping Strategy document 

Legal advice sought 
 

 

 NA   

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

Y    Adults Advisory Board Feb 
2021 

Lead Member Briefing Jan 
2021 

 
Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 

P
age 12



 

   

 

 

 

and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work 

P
age 13



 

   

 

 

 

Salford Adult Social Care Market Shaping Strategy 

 

1. Executive summary 

In response to the Care Act 2014 requirement to ensure there is sufficient, quality and cost 
effective Adult Social Care services in Salford, the strategy document sets out Salford’s 5 
year plan to develop, enhance and ‘shape’ Adult Social Care services for the benefit of 
Salford adults. Members of the Adult Commissioning Committee are asked to refer to the 
accompanying Salford Adult Social Care Market Shaping Strategy. 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Recommendations 

7.1 The Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to: 

 Review and comment on the draft Salford Adult Social Care Market Shaping Strategy 

 Subject to any required changes or additions, approve the Salford Adult Social Care Market 
Shaping Strategy 

 

 

 

Name (Author): Paul Walsh 

Job title: Assistant Director for Integrated Commissioning. 

 

Page 14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE MARKET 
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

2020-2025 
 
 
 
 

Our strategy for building a vibrant and sustainable 

adult social care market in Salford 

Page 15



2 Salford    Market Development Strategy 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 Page 3    Foreword  
 
 Page 4    Context 
 
 Page 8    Vision 
 
 Page 9    Market Enablers 
 
 Page 18    Market Commitments 
 
 Page 19    The Voice of Salford People 
 
 
  
 

CONTENTS 

Page 16



Salford    Market Development Strategy 3 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

We are pleased to present Salford’s Market 

Development Strategy which is the starting point for 

developing a stronger more effective partnership 

between Strategic Commissioners in Salford City 

Council and Salford Clinical Commissioning Group, 

Salford  Care Organisation and independent health 

and social care providers, which will be necessary 

to deliver a strengths-based person centred, 

sustainable care and support market that is fit for 

the future. 

 

Salford’s Market Position Statement (MPS) 

published in 2015 was our first step in ensuring, as a 

Salford Locality, we are fulfilling our duties under the 

Care Act 2014 to promote diversity, quality and 

sustainability in the local care and support market.  

 

Since 2014, the way in which we provide services 

has changed fundamentally – increasing 

financial and demographic pressures, alongside 

the challenges brought about by Covid 19, place 

greater emphasis on establishing a new dynamic 

approach to working together to secure a 

sustainable and responsive social care market. 

Our approach to supporting the development of 

the market will have a renewed focus on 

creating a positive environment which nurtures 

high quality, value and innovative practice. 

 

Building on the MPS and ongoing market 

intelligence work, we know we must change 

traditional behaviours, moving away from the rigid 

commissioning and contracting practices to using a 

broader range of market shaping activities. In the 

future this means we expect to work with a 

broader range of providers in a variety of different 

ways.  

 

 

 

 

We also want to recognise the hard work and 

dedication that has gone into protecting our 

vulnerable communities during the Covid 19 

pandemic and we are committed, in this Market 

Development Strategy, to continuing the partnership, 

collaboration and innovative support that has been 

developed by our providers across our Salford Locality 

and the local population we all support. 

 

In this respect, we will continue to work with residential, 

nursing, home and day care providers and also work 

more closely with a range of other organisations in the 

private and voluntary sectors, including housing 

providers to ensure we can improve people’s wellbeing 

and offer a diverse range of services. 

 

This strategy is the culmination of a strategic review of 

the way we have historically worked to shape and 

deliver our adult social care market responsibilities and 

service. It recognises the good work that we have 

carried out over recent years, the aspects that we wish 

to improve upon and set out the ways in which we will 

deliver the actions and approaches to realise that 

transformation that will secure the best possible 

outcomes for the people of Salford 

 

The strategy aligns to Salford’s Great Eight, supporting 

the creation of a better and fairer Salford for all. It also 

embraces the priorities of Salford Locality Plan in 

promoting equalities and wellbeing for Salford people. 

 

It is a key priority and one that we look forward to 

working together to make a reality. 

 

[insert signatories] 

 
 
 

 

FOREWORD 

Page 17



Salford    Market Development Strategy 4 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background to this strategy 

Salford, like most Councils nationwide, has produced a Market Position Statement (MPS) in response to the 

Care Act 2014 market management duties.  Whilst the MPS has served a purpose in describing the structure 

of the market, it is the start of a process.  

 

Integration and the perception of local willingness to innovate have historically attracted providers to deliver 

services in Salford.  As such, a ‘best in class’ approach to market development should consider going above 

and beyond the traditional structure and content of the MPS to include:  

 

 grappling with new challenges and opportunities brought about by a truly integrated care system, 

 considering the benefits brought about by closer working with the health sector 

 providing people with more choice and control over decisions that affect their lives.  

 

In 2019, Salford commissioned a review of our local approach to the MPS. During the course of the review, 

we challenged the MPS’ traditional approach to market development, which historically focused on the act of 

‘counting how many providers we have of ‘type A’ and how many ‘type B and C’ we need in the future’.  

 

The concept of a market ‘hall’ was utilised to describe this provider market – with ‘stalls’ acting as providers 

and the ‘hall’ as a structure that entices trade and offers a positive environment for growth.  

 

By switching the focus of the review from 

the individual stalls we intend to attract 

to the market hall as the operating 

environment in which the Salford 

partnership can actively influence, we 

make the fundamental distinction that as 

an area we can only develop or attract 

‘type B and C’ stalls if the environment is 

right (market shaping). Therefore, the 

actions contained in this strategy are 

designed to promote a positive and 

nurturing environment for providers to 

flourish.  We have not yet seen an MPS 

that tackles the challenge of market 

shaping from this angle and in doing so 

we expect to allow unique creativity and 

innovation to our working with providers in future. 
 

A key challenge for health and social care systems is making sense of what we collectively mean when we 

refer to market shaping. Definitions range from:  

 
 

 

Page 18

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/387174/adult-social-care-market-position-statement.pdf


Salford    Market Development Strategy 5 

 

 

 “Activity to understand your local market of care providers and stimulate a diverse range of care and 
support services to ensure that people and their carers have choice over how their needs are met and 
that they are able to achieve the things that are important to them. It is also about ensuring that the 
care market as a whole remains vibrant and stable.”1  
 

 “Commissioners work with people and providers to understand how people want to live a good life. 

They work to make sure that different types of support are available at the right price to achieve this 

now and in the future. Commissioners, citizens and service providers collaborate”.2 

 

The definition we developed, which has underpinned the review is: “The extent to which the systems, 

processes and behaviours at the interface between social work, commissioners, self-funders and providers 

influence the variety, quality, availability and price of services offered to customers both now and in the future.” 

 

In the time between undertaking the review in 2019 and producing this strategy, we have experienced an 

unprecedented pandemic which has taken its toll on every aspect of our lives. As we continue to take steps 

to address the challenges of the pandemic we will continue to apply the principles of cooperation and 

collaboration as set out in the Market Strategy document, and at the same time continue to learn the 

important lessons so we can more forward and secure the best possible outcome for our ASC market in 

meeting the needs of people in Salford. In doing so we recognise that we will need a strong focus to 

understand and apply those presenting opportunities - also that the pace and scale of our ambitions will need 

to be reviewed as we move forward together to deliver the shared vision. 

 

Overview of the adult social care market  

Data published by Skills for Care (SfC) in March 2020 shows that Salford had 5,400 people working in the Adult 

Social Care Sector (ASC), with the vast majority (4,600) working in care home or home care services. There 

were 550 jobs working for people who received a Direct Payment. 

 

Across the ASC workforce, 93% of staff were employed on permanent contracts and 26% of front-line staff 

were on a zero hours contracts, similar to the NW average. There were 850 leavers in 2019/20 year or 19% of 

the workforce (better than the NW average). There was a 5% vacancy rate (better than the NW average) and 

a sickness rate of 3.6 days on average. Staff working in the sector had, on average 8 years of experience 

 

87% of the workforce were female and 15% were from a BAME background (both higher than the NW 

average). 87% were British (lower than the NW average) – 4% from the EU. The average age of the workforce 

was 44 years with 8% under 25 years. 

 

The average pay for workers in the independent ASC sector was £9.24 in March 2020 (about the NW average), 

which is £1.03 above the National Living Wage. The average pay for front line workers in the independent ASC 

sector was £8.73 (about the NW average) in March 2020, which is £0.52 above the National Living Wage. 49% 

of staff in the independent sector held a recognised social care qualification (lower than the NW average) with 

42% engaged with the Care Certificate. 

 

Data from SfC (March 2020) suggests that 5% of all Salford jobs are within the ASC sector, contributing £147m 

(Gross Value Added) towards the local economy 

 

                                                           
1 Care and Support Statutory Guidance, Section 4.6; see: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-social-care-market-shaping/adult-social-care-
market-shaping 
2 Think Local Act Personal (TLAP); see: https://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/co-production-in-commissioning-tool/commissioning-market-shaping/In-more-
detail/What-is-market-shaping/ Page 19

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-social-care-market-shaping/adult-social-care-market-shaping
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-social-care-market-shaping/adult-social-care-market-shaping
https://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/co-production-in-commissioning-tool/commissioning-market-shaping/In-more-detail/What-is-market-shaping/
https://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/co-production-in-commissioning-tool/commissioning-market-shaping/In-more-detail/What-is-market-shaping/


Salford    Market Development Strategy 6 

 

 

A summary of the adult social care sector and workforce in Salford 2019/20: 

https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/adult-social-care-workforce-data/Workforce-

intelligence/documents/Local-authority-area-summary-reports/North-west/2020/Salford-Summary-

2020.pdf 

 

 

 
 

The current structure of the adult social care market responds to a ‘care management’ approach with people’s 

needs being managed through an escalation pathway. The market tends towards a traditional structure, 

operating across a uni-directional continuum of need. (Figure 1 provides an indicative model based on the 4 

main components of the market that make up 75% of people who are supported – the remaining 25% are 

supported through a range of community-based support, for example, Extra Care, Shared Lives and Day Centre 

services). For example, individuals with less complex needs starting their care journey with reablement and/or 

low-level homecare and, as needs or complexity increases, services such as extra care (supported tenancies), 

residential and nursing care are utilised.   

 

Figure 2 breaks down service user volumes and trends in utilisation over a 24-month period. Whilst homecare 

numbers are relatively high (circa 1,000 users), nursing and residential placements continue to be growth 

areas, whereas extra care has seen a slight decrease in the period Oct 2017 to Sept 2019.  

 
Figure 2:  Volume Increase / Decrease (Oct’17 to Sep’19) by Support 
Type 

Figure 1:  current support model 

Page 20

https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/adult-social-care-workforce-data/Workforce-intelligence/documents/Local-authority-area-summary-reports/North-west/2020/Salford-Summary-2020.pdf
https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/adult-social-care-workforce-data/Workforce-intelligence/documents/Local-authority-area-summary-reports/North-west/2020/Salford-Summary-2020.pdf
https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/adult-social-care-workforce-data/Workforce-intelligence/documents/Local-authority-area-summary-reports/North-west/2020/Salford-Summary-2020.pdf


Salford    Market Development Strategy 7 

 

 

 
 

Foundations for the future strategy 

It is clear that commissioners and providers alike need to build better arrangements for working together 

within the care and support market if they are to deliver the new models of provision needed in Salford and 

to improve quality, increased choice and control for individuals and to deliver a much more responsive and 

efficient commissioning and delivery model.  Key pillars for the successful delivery of this strategy will be: 

 

1. Strengthening the voice of providers in the development of the market; 

 

2. Utilising the wealth of information gathered from people/carers/experience etc contact; and 

 

3. Empowering all staff to build on strengths based and place-based approaches which values the capacity, 

skills, knowledge, connections and potential in individuals and communities, and supports 

commissioners to shape the market by developing services that meet these aspirations. 
 
 

 
 

Page 21



Salford    Market Development Strategy 8
8 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

We are all  likely to be touched by adult social care at some point in our lives, but the current model of ASC 
at a local and national level is not sustainable in the context of funding pressures, increased demand, 
increases in complexity of need and expectations of statutory services. The Local Government Association 
set out a series of recommendations (The lives we want to lead - towards change, towards hope) which it 
has asked the Government to reflect on in the Green Paper for ASC.  
 
In addition to this, the recent experience of the global pandemic will give further insight into how adult 
social care could work differently to provide creative solutions that support sustainable ASC provision. In 
setting the way forward for delivering a sustainable model of adult social care for Salford we are committed 
to developing our approaches to support people to live well at home, leading the lives they choose to lead 
within the locally available resources.  This will help develop a legacy that meets the needs of current and 
future recipients of adult social care support. 
 
The approach to developing adult social care in Salford will be founded on the culture and principles of 
cooperation, inclusivity and democracy. We will work with people as we re-shape the quality and range of 
ASC services that we have in our city, working together to build our future.  
 
We want to promote and secure a vibrant adult social care market that is continually shaping around the 
changing needs of people and that is supported by a knowledgeable and skilled workforce who are 
rewarded for the great work they do. We want to foster a culture for quality improvement and innovation. 
We want Salford to be a beacon of excellence for adult social care that promotes and secures high quality 
life experiences for Salford people.  
 

Figure 3 provides a new conceptual continuum of need and support where care services respond to and 

collaborate around the strengths and potential of people in their community – enabling people to live in their 

own home, independently of regulated services for as long as possible by maximizing their wellbeing and life-

skills - together with flexible models of support that respond to the changes in people’s lives. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VISION 

Figure 3:  a new continuum of support 

Page 22



Salford    Market Development Strategy 9 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

During our 2019 review of Salford’s care market, we identified a number of market enablers (figure 4) for 

growing a sustainable and diverse market which responds to changes in need and maximises people’s 

independence, taking the market hall concept further.  

 

The nature of the enablers demonstrates the need to move towards a new method of market development, 

moving away from what we have historically purchased and what we think we may need in the future, to how 

we purchase and create an new environment for the market to flourish. 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 
 

 

Figure 4: market enablers 

Page 23



Salford    Market Development Strategy 10 

 

 

Effective Communication 

 

Where we are now: Providers have fed back that it is not always clear who the decision makers are and where 
conversations around the future direction of the market should be directed towards. 
 
What good will look like: Through building positive partnerships, providers are open and transparent about 

the challenges they face, without concern that this could advertently impact their position. Regular 

information and communication supports providers’ understanding of the market, internal structures and 

challenges. Salford residents are provided with information that supports choice and control of the care they 

receive. Opportunities to co-locate with providers are maximised to improve day-to-day operations. 

 

How this will be achieved: 
 

1. Reviewing existing engagement and communication structures with Providers to ensure they are 

strategic and impactful. From this review we will develop and implement a new communication 

strategy and establish forums and engagement activities which support stronger working 

relationships.  

 
 

Positive Partnerships 

 

Where we are now: In recent engagement with the market providers were asked to rate the level of influence 

(see figure 5) the Salford system has on the market and where this needs to be in the future to support our 

vision. The current position was identified as predominately management (64%; 36% identifying control), 

whereas the future state needs to move towards shaping (64%; influencing 27%). Providers do not always feel 

consulted in decisions which effect the market and sometimes decisions taken may have unintended 

consequences which can result in less productive relationships with providers. 

 

 
 

What good will look like: relationships are built on trust and equal partnership, with solutions co-produced 
and transparency on both sides. Providers know who to approach in the system and are confident that their 
views will be listened to and taken account. The voice from service users and providers is present in any future 
service reconfiguration and strategy. Offering individual choice in the ‘truest’ of senses, namely, designing 
personalised support with a ‘blank sheet of paper’ poses a risk to market development and predicting future 
needs. It will require providers and service offerings to be malleable which poses a greater challenge to 
physical services such as accommodation. The central challenge is to assess the total quantity of resources 
needed to ensure that people have access to the right level of support, this applies to people who receive 
commissioned support as well as the self-funder market. 

Figure 5:  market influence 

Page 24



Salford    Market Development Strategy 11 

 

 

 
How this will be achieved: 
 

2. Engagement forums, such as the care homes excellence programme, are replicated across the 
system so that the main types of service provision have representative networks. These groups will 
be underpinned by a co-production approach to market challenges and service design. 

 
3. Introduction of market impact assessment process for all decisions pertaining to provision.  

 
 

Finance and Contracting 

 

Where we are now: Providers have been clear that mounting expectations on the sector together with low 

historic fee levels are bringing into question the sustainability of the market. Social care budgets are reducing 

and as a care system we face unprecedented financial and demographic pressures. 

 

What good will look like: Salford partners will ensure that budgets for adult social care service are set annually 

to reflect changes in Salford’s population, any plans for shaping the market and to ensure we are able to meet 

our objectives to create an environment that values people who work in the sector, promotes improvement 

and innovation, and delivers high quality services.  Acceptance of local commissioned rates and commitment 

to pay the Foundation Living Wage in contracts is set in the context of the cost to conduct business for 

providers and there is greater transparency on both sides. Providers are able to make a reasonable, 

sustainable return from conducting business in the local area. Funding of packages are person-centered, 

responsive to needs and consider unique outcomes for the individual, moving away from funding packages 

that don’t sufficiently promote independence. Direct payment processes are easy to use and encourage 

individuals to act as ‘consumers’ in the marketplace, making purchasing decisions around their own care. 

 

How this will be achieved: 

 

4. We will consider different contracting approaches that promote partnership working as well as 

facilitating flexible, innovative, quality and outcome focused services.  

 

5. We will establish payment rates that are reflective of the requirements of service specification’s 

and activity levels.  We will achieve this through a collaborative approach to fee setting, open book 

accountancy and use of robust financial intelligence. 

 
6. We will have an annual fee review that will have a published process. 

 
 

Effective & Efficient Processes 

 

Where we are now: It was not clear if the current approach to strength-based assessments is influencing 

commissioning and purchasing decisions in a structured fashion. Like most areas there is work required to 

ensure individual caseloads and intelligence is aggregated up to inform ‘macro’ commissioning. Practitioners 

have first-hand experience of what people need and the quality of the service, so their voice is important to 

the process. There is a sense that traditional models of care must be used as direct payments are difficult to 

access. Route to market is often complex, whilst social workers assess, commissioners and procurement gate 

keep and influence what can be bought through frameworks, potentially restricting placements with unknown 

providers. There needs to be more education internally around what is in the market and how providers Page 25



Salford    Market Development Strategy 12 

 

 

differentiate. The responsiveness and flexibility of the market, in part, is governed by the systems and 

processes that we have put in place, such as renumeration based on time and task and the use of formalised 

frameworks.  

 

What good will look like: Processes are efficient and add value to delivering care to individuals, which supports 

them to live the lives they want to lead. Unnecessary and bureaucratic processes that do not improve 

individual outcomes, create a seamless customer journey or are required through statutory legislation are 

removed. Attention is paid to what would make it easier for social workers and procurement to put into 

practice this strategy. 

 

How this will be achieved: 

 

7. Creation of a bridge to share intelligence between frontline practitioners (micro commissioning), 

strategic commissioning and market management functions of the system. Bridging the gap between 

micro and macro commissioning will require the aggregation of case themes to identify areas for 

strategic commissioning to develop. The creation of a ‘innovation mentor’ role, whose purpose will 

be to bridge the gap between the teams and recognised commissioning functions, would help 

improve the flow of information. The primary purpose of this role would be to check and challenge 

that all services procured or developed add value to people’s lives. They would be responsible for 

exploring gaps in provision and challenging how needs could be best met, aggregating this 

information up to ‘commissioners’ to inform procurement activity and service redesign. Linked to 

this role we will develop and deliver a workforce development plan to enable front line social care 

staff to contribute to ‘market shaping’ both at a ‘micro’ level and to support static commissioning. 

 

8. We will continue to develop our understanding of strengths based working through developing a 

local approach under the umbrella of community led support.  This approach recognises the vital 

approach that funded ASC support plays in people’s lives, whilst valuing and building on the capacity, 

skills, knowledge, connections and potential in individuals and the communities they live in.  A key 

enabler to deliver this is through an enhanced approach to the provision of direct payments, which 

enables individuals to receive the support they need to take more control over how they meet their 

care and support needs through creative solutions not available under traditional approaches to 

commissioned support.  

 

9. Review current digital and web-based information sources to ensure they are up-to-date, accessible 

and utilised by frontline staff. 

 

 

Fostering Innovation 

 

Where we are now: Innovation and responsiveness to changing needs is challenging under financial 

constraints; this is further compounded by a potential risk aversion and a lack of clarity where providers should 

take their ideas and the support that may be available to them to test and implement. Providers inherently 

want to do their best for people, but the strict boundaries and way services are set up are not always 

conducive to promoting people’s independence (see example figure 6). 
 

Page 26



Salford    Market Development Strategy 13 

 

 

 
 
The profile of people coming to social services and requiring support is changing, possibly due to the Care Act 

and the strengths-based approaches; providers are seeing more intensive/complex needs and individuals 

rightly hold higher expectations of how adult social care should support them to live the life they want to lead. 

A focus on crisis and escalated issues will have an impact on social workers’ capacity to consider ‘prevention 

and early intervention’ and consider the root causes and how these may be addressed within the community. 

This intelligence is integral in developing a spectrum of care services along the continuum of need, ensuring 

low level services are aligned to real life experience and there is capacity and support based on needs and not 

‘what we have’. We are working to enhance our responses to individual needs and outcomes through the 

further development of our approaches at both a person and place based level which values and builds on 

the capacity, skills, knowledge, connections and potential in individuals and the communities they live in. This 

approach will be built on the principles of co-creation and will require all partners (specifically those with lived 

experience) to help transform and design the future model of adult social care 

 
What good will look like: A culture of informed and positive risk taking is instilled throughout the health and 
social care system and providers are encouraged and supported to think differently around services through 
the commissioning of outcomes as opposed to structured activity and outputs. Best practice and lessons 
learned are openly shared across organisations and services are co-produced with stakeholders (residents and 
providers). There will be a range of flexible commissioning arrangements depending upon the support in 
question and the readiness and willingness of the market. 
 
How this will be achieved: 
 

10. Implementation of Community Led Support (CLS) programme (strengths-based practice). We will 

continue to improve and evolve the way adult social care will be working alongside the National 

Development Team for Inclusion to help transform the way in which health and care assess and 

respond to needs and outcomes. 

 

11. Building on the CLS programme, we have the opportunity to test new ways of delivering homecare 

by working with providers we will explore moving away from ‘time and task’ with support provided 

to individuals in a prescriptive manner to a flexible homecare model in which activities and support 

is co-developed by the individual and the provider and is responsive to changes in need (+/-). We 

envisage care staff having an enhanced role as ‘key workers’ linking and supporting individuals to 

Figure 6: independence scenario 

Page 27



Salford    Market Development Strategy 14 

 

 

access community activities, technology and other innovative solutions and ideas, to help meet 

needs.  We will enable homecare providers to become part of our neighbourhood teams, working 

alongside other health and care staff. This will enable providers of social care to enhance their own 

knowledge of the assets in the local community and provider greater opportunities to work with 

voluntary sector partners and social enterprises to deliver new ways of working.  

 

12. Explore the benefit of enhancing the non-regulated support and routes to market, changing the 

position that formal social care is the only means by which needs can be met. We will enhance the 

support provided by the VCSE sector, building on their current service contracts and through their 

independently funded work, to enable people to connect to a wider range of non-regulated support 

– including the use of direct payments. 

 

13. Explore the potential benefits and opportunities for delegating health activity into care and support 

packages, thus offering enhanced roles and development opportunities to the market whilst also 

providing residents a seamless service. 
 

14. Longer term we will explore developments such as new outcome-based contacting, including 

examples like dynamic purchasing system (DPS) for provision of care services. Conceptually, this 

would avoid profiling by service type or client group as removing these labels would enhance the 

focus on needs and outcomes for individuals and would allow providers flexibility to respond with 

new and innovative service offers. The framework would incorporate key statutory requirements 

under an overarching contract with support plans (and ‘pen pictures’) forming the basis of service 

specifications. We will consider creative and novel approaches to contracting and procurement that 

support the objectives of the Market Shaping Strategy. 

 
 

Market Intelligence 

 

Where we are now: Intelligence on the self-funder market and from providers can be limited. There is a need 

to promote systems that enable good quality information to be secured from providers, for example, applying 

the Provider Assessment and Market Management Solution (PAMMS) system. How we use the information 

to promote improvements, development, innovation and changes to the structure of the market is critical 

 

What good will look like: Providers understand market trends, intentions for future commissioning, market 

gaps and other intelligence such as service capacity, the self-funder market and specialist placements. 

Commissioners have a greater insight on the self-funder market to help with overall market shaping. 
 

How this will be achieved: 

 

15. Disseminate market intelligence on types of needs and support through State of Market annual 

report, this will take the form of a shortened MPS, identifying current supply, demand, quality and 

expenditure in the market. 

 
 

Workforce 

 

Where we are now: Providers of adult social care services are finding it difficult to retain a stable and 

experienced workforce. Competition is increasing from other markets, together with providers who through 

a ‘specialist’ provision badge, command higher rates and in-turn can offer more attractive renumeration. Page 28



Salford    Market Development Strategy 15 

 

 

Further work is required to raise the profile and value of the profession. Providers are reporting that roles are 

increasingly being professionalised without a recognition of this change in status. 

 

What good will look like: The health and social care workforce is considered as a whole and opportunities to 

support and develop will be extended throughout the sector to help ensure the highest calibre of people. 

Approaches for training, skills, retention and attraction are co-produced with providers, including the sharing 

of resources and expertise. 

 

Salford employment standards – for adult social care workers 

 Use, as a minimum, the Living Wage Foundation ‘Real Living Wage’ for all employees - pay staff the 

Real Living Wage as set by the Living Wage Foundation. 

 Use good employment practices - create a positive working environment by valuing employee's hard 

work and commitment, using ethical contracts of employment, having sound policies and practices 

and decent working conditions for all employees. Contract values will support providers in securing 

healthy and productive working environments for their staff 

 Encourage a healthy workplace - have clear policies and practice in place that promote and improve 

and health and wellbeing and address crucial issues such as staff retention and absence management. 

 
How employers can show their commitment 

 Pay staff as a minimum the ‘Real’ Living Wage as set by the Living Wage Foundation 

 Become a formal ‘Living Wage Employers’ by seeking accreditation 

 Offer secure positions and predictable shifts including sufficient notice periods for shifts: of at least 4 

weeks’ notice, with guaranteed payment if shifts are cancelled within this notice period. 

 Offer a contract with living hours: a contract that reflects accurate hours worked, and a guaranteed 

minimum of 16 hours a week (unless the worker requests otherwise) 

 Operate fair contracting practices which exclude the use of zero hours contracts – unless explicitly 

requested by the employee 

 Having policies in place around workforce development/training, equality and diversity, health and 

safety, attendance management, work life balance, flexible/home working, practice good people 

management, volunteering, Modern Slavery and anti-blacklisting policy etc. 

 Provider work-based wellbeing support for their staff 

 Encourage and support Union recognition 

 Operate governance structures that demonstrate the involvement of staff through feedback and 

action planning. 

 

Investing in Salford’s workforce 

 Where possible, employ local people - create and provide employment opportunities for Salford 

people including career progression 

 Develop a skilled workforce - create and provide training, work experience and apprenticeship 

opportunities for Salford people 

 Provide support to raise skills and aspirations in young people - work with schools and colleges to 

support curriculum development, the provision of careers and enterprise provision for pupils and 

young people 

 

How employers can show their commitment: 

 Advertise your vacancies through Salford recruitment channels and local recruitment services 

 Hold or participate in local recruitment events 

 Recruit apprentices Page 29



Salford    Market Development Strategy 16 

 

 

 Work with schools and colleges by giving talks about your sector and journey, speaking to staff about 

how the curriculum links to the world of work, interview support or mentoring 

 Become a Schools Enterprise Advisor 

 Collaborate with sector partners in undertaking workforce actions 

 
Equal and inclusive in Salford 

 Actively promote equalities in the workforce and address discrimination. Ensure that sound policies 

and practice are in place around equalities and discrimination is proactively addressed 

 Provide opportunities for Salford’s diverse communities - ensure that recruitment and other HR 

arrangements connect residents from Salford's diverse communities to the opportunities offered 

 Reinforce good practice around equalities and diversity in your supply chain - respect the diversity of 

Salford communities through responsible business activity. 

 

How employers can show their commitment: 

 Become Disability Confidant advocate 

 Provide a work experience or placement opportunity (all ages) 

 Become involved in a Traineeship programme for unemployed young people 16 -24 

 Allow employees to volunteer to support Salford’s communities 

 Encourage workplace engagement and voice 

 Meet high standards and encourage other employers to raise employment standards 

 Work with local experts to apply best practice 
 

How this will be achieved: 
 

16. Identify a specific role in Salford to take forward and adult social care provider workforce programme 

to work towards the standards set out above. 

 

17. Undertake an options appraisal for the formation of a local professional register, open to all care 

workers and through which providers and individuals seeking a personal assistant could recruit. 

 
 

Quality 

 

Where we are now: The quality of the Salford market is currently monitored through a number of different 
methods which include, but is not limited to, CQC ratings, service user feedback, soft intelligence from 
professionals and performance data.  
 
A new adult social care specific quality assurance framework has recently been implemented to gain a Salford 
perspective of the quality of services. The framework incorporates a variety of information sources including 
the views of people with lived experience.  A quality Improvement strategy has been developed for the care 
homes market.  
 
It is important to note that securing quality service sits alongside equality of access to those services. Salford 
has a strong and dynamic approach to embracing the richness and diversity of all our communities. We will 
expect ASC providers to: 

 Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons due to their protected characteristic(s). 

 Take steps to meet the needs of people with protected characteristics. 

 Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in decision making 
about their service.  

Page 30



Salford    Market Development Strategy 17 

 

 

 
What good will look like: Quality and information returns will be proportionate to the context. Understanding 

how services are performing will include both individual and professional experience as well as data returns, 

thus reducing the administrative burden on the market and ensuring time is spent on value added activity, 

caring and supporting for people. Outcomes, such as focus on independence, choice, control and quality of 

life, will have a greater role in assessing the quality of provision.  ASC Providers will have roles that lead  

equality and diversity within this Salford based service, have staff that have been trained in equality and 

diversity, and be able to demonstrate through action planning, improvements in their approaches to equality 

and diversity.  

 

How this will be achieved: 

 

18. Quality will be embedded at all points of the commissioning and procurement lifecycle – our 

procurement activity, contracting approaches, monitoring methodology together with finances will 

facilitate the delivery of quality services. 

 

19. We will take an aspirational approach to measuring the quality of adult social care service provision. 

The development of a quality strategy that builds on the key principles from the care home quality 

improvement strategy will be co-designed with key stakeholders. Whilst, the quality audits from the 

PAMMS system identify a score of service quality, service user experience and outcomes achieved 

will supplement our overall view. Our quality approaches will strike a balance between measuring 

the key building blocks of quality that provide assurance and Care Act compliance, together with 

outcomes that give a reflection of the quality of life for those individuals supported within ASC. 

 

20. ASC providers will identify a lead member of staff for equalities and diversity and ensure staff are 

trained on matters relating to equality and diversity. ASC providers will include actions to improve 

equality and diversity in their annual business plans. 

 
  

Page 31



Salford    Market Development Strategy 18 

 

 

approach with key stakeholders.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To deliver this new way of working we think it is important that expectations are clear.  
 
Providers can expect the following from Salford:  
 

1. We as commissioners are clear about our long-term approach to the market, what outcomes we want 

to achieve and what customers have told us they want from services. This will be communicated 

through new engagement channels to the market, together with the production of an annual ‘State of 

the Care Market’ report. 

 

2. Create a sustainable market environment that will foster innovation and maximise outcomes. We will 

apply annual budget and fee setting processes. We will review tendering and procurement processes, 

evaluate their impact on the provider market and explore how improvements can be made that will 

help promote flexibility in service provision and co-produced solutions which will promote person 

centred care, maximise independence, choice and control for people in receipt of services. Providers 

need to be clear with local authorities what they consider is wrong with their procurement processes 

and how they could be improved.  

 

3. Pass the principles and benefits of integration through the supply chain of ASC providers. We will do 

this by codesigning services with our neighborhood service models. We will also do this through 

securing our workforce standards aspirations. 

 
What we expect from the marketplace and providers:  
 

4. Providers develop greater trust in commissioners and are prepared to be more open and transparent 

about the things that could be improved together with being willing to share more intelligence such 

as service activity, impact and cost information (within the bounds of reasonable confidentiality).  

 

5. Providers will be proactive in the market-place, recognising that needs are changing and the market is 

much broader than statutory services and public sector commissioning. 

 
6. Providers will ensure their terms and conditions on employment match Salford’s adult social care 

workforce standards 

 
 
  

 
 

 

Page 32



Salford    Market Development Strategy 19 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Citizen Voice 

 

Salford has a strong tradition and culture or cooperation, collaboration and democracy. As we move forward 

with our plans for shaping our adult social care market, we will do so with the people we serve at the heart 

of our thinking and planning.  

 

We will do this in a numbers of ways. We will continue to establish and support the expert opinion of Salford 

people as we plan our work and in making decisions. We will provide a range of opportunities for local 

people to get involved and we will provide support from workers to facilitate engagement activity. We will 

ensure that there are a range of citizen-led approaches where people can join in with healthy and active 

dialogue about matters that are important to them. 

 

We will continue to ensure we take a listen to learn approach for all statutory adult social care complaints, 

feedback from people who access support funded support (through existing satisfaction surveys), the annual 

ASC survey and bi annual carers survey to make sure the voice of people with lived experience is central to 

our thinking.   

 

Through the plans to embed community led support we will be working with Healthwatch Salford, Salford 

CVS and local citizens to develop methods for co creating news models of health and care.  We are also 

seeking active feedback and on new models of adult social care through the big reset public engagement 

event  

 

Provider Voice  

 
Listening and responding to Provider views, including the views of the workforce, is a cornerstone in our 
approach to developing vibrant and sustainable adults social care services. We will have regular dialogue 
and people involved will be honest and transparent. 
 
Building on our existing positive relationships with providers in our local market we will hold regular market 

engagement events with Providers working in Salford, including those who support the self-funder market. 

We will undertake market testing prior to the procurement of adult social care services. We will explore and 

implement where appropriate, procurement processes that facilitate dialogue with providers when 

commissioning services. We will provide a nominated point of contact for Providers and keep you informed 

and advised of changes and developments through regular communications. We will undertake an Annual 

Provider Survey, the results of which will inform our annual planning, commissioning and procurement 

processes. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 33



 

 

 
 

Page 34



 

Adults’ Commissioning Committee 

Part 1 

Agenda item number: 5 

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information 

10th March 2021 

Report of: Chief Finance Officer 

Date of paper: 25th February 2021 

Subject: Finance Report 

In case of query please contact: David Warhurst, Interim Chief Finance 
Officer 

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to) 

Priority Selection 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research:   

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services): X 

Children’s and Maternity Services:   

Primary Care:   

Enabling Transformation:  X 

Purpose of paper:  

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with the 
2020/21 financial outturn of the Integrated Fund for Adult services (Section 2) along with 
highlighting the risks to the financial position of the Adults Integrated Fund for 2021/22. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



 

Further explanatory information required 

Question Answer 

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group? 

Ensuring public funding is spent 
appropriately.  Achieving Value for Money, 
ensuring that funding is available to protect 
core services. 

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated? 

Financial and performance pressures 
associated with the adults’ integrated fund 
services. Through management of 
committed developments and holding 
providers to account for performance. 

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated? 

N/A 

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them? 

N/A 

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper. 

N/A 

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper. 

 

N/A 

 
Footnote: 

 

Members of Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once papers 
are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 36



   

 

Document development 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Public engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation) 

 X    

Clinical engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation) 

 X    

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value 
and the impacts on the residents of Salford 
socially, economically and environmentally 
(including climate change)? 

 X    

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 

(Please detail outcomes, including risks and 
how these will be managed)  

 X    

Legal advice sought  X    

P
age 37



   

 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

 

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) for 
engagement or other formal governance 
groups for comments / approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

X   Elements have been reviewed by the 
Service and Finance Group 

 

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work 

P
age 38



   

 

 

Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC) 

Finance Report – 10th March 2021 

1. Executive summary 

This finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with an in-year 
update in relation to the financial performance of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund. 

At January 2021, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is currently forecasting to be 
overspent by £1.1m. This is a worsening of £0.5m from the last report of £0.6m over spent 
position. The movement primarily relates to a continued reduction in client income, which will 
now be £1.5m below the target level of income, compared to the forecast of £1m last reported 
to the committee.  

 

Section 2 - Highlights the main areas of over and under performance within the fund.  All 
budget areas have been realigned to match the now known allocation of the CCG for the rest of 
the year. There have been some movements in budgets between lines but remains in line with 
the last report to the committee with the exception of the below changes in position: 

 

Section 3 & 4 – Gives an update on the progress of planning for 2021/22 financial plan of the 
Integrated Fund in its entirety, along with the next steps and risk associated with planning for 
2021/22. 

ACC is asked to note the forecast position for the Adults’ Integrated Fund for 2020/21 and note 
the next steps and risks to the Adults’ fund for 2021/22. 

 

 

2. 2020/21 Monitoring 

2.1  This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with the 
forecast position of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund for the financial year 
(2020/21).  The appendices normally contain further detail, but it should be noted, due to 
the majority of contracts being on block for the full year these appendices have been 
removed for this year as they provide detail on activity which is not currently being 
reported. This finance report is based on information up to the end of January 2021, the 
Service and Finance Group (SFG) have scrutinised the position and agreed to the key 
messages. 

Page 39



   

 

 

2.2 The forecast position for 2020/21 at January 2021 is an over spend of £1.1m, where 
expenditure is forecast to underspend by £0.4m but this is offset by income estimated to 
underachieve by £1.5m due to COVID-19 and the effects on customer and client 
receipts, as shown in Table 1 below. 

 

Table 1: 2020/21 Financial Summary 

 

 

2.3 Acute/other underspends – The CCG has been mandated by NHSE to maintain set 
budget values that have been calculated nationally until the end of March 2021. The 

Page 40



   

 

budgets have been realigned to reflect these set values. The independent sector 
providers are exempt from these block arrangements and will return to their normal 
contract arrangements of activity based payments. There are still some independent 
sector providers that remain on a national contract with NHSE; for Salford only Oaklands 
remains on this contract.  

 

2.3.1 Committed Developments - There are still a number of investments that are currently 
being reviewed to ensure they are still required and what will be spent in the remainder of 
2020/21. There may be further slippage in the investments proposed for the rest of the 
year as some of these relate to staffing models. 

 

2.3.2 Customer & Client Receipts - £1.5m – A further review has been undertaken with the 
service on receipts and this has result in an increase in the underachievement of income 
by £0.5m. Despite the national guidance being amended on this area the loss in revenue 
has increased in the past few months against previous expectations. However it should 
be noted there is currently a backlog of assessments that need to be completed in order 
to ascertain if charging should be made for clients. 

 

 

3. Integrated Fund 2021/22 

3.1 Whilst the NHS planning round has been paused, there is still a need to make immediate 
decisions linked to the localities integrated working arrangements – for example the ASC 
precept and consequentially council tax rates. 

 

3.2 A first draft plan has been developed, which included the addition of the CCGs and Local 
Authorities increased income streams but also costs associated with the locality strategy 
approved at the September Health Care Commissioning Board (HCCB), NHS must do’s 
and Local Authority priorities. The initial first draft plan projected a £10.5m deficit across 
the whole integrated fund, this compared to a £4.7m risk at the start of 2020/21.   

 

3.3 A significant amount of work has subsequently been undertaken to reduce this figure and 
following discussions at the February HCCB, the expected risk is now been reduced to 
c.£6m. Whilst £6m is still an increase from the opening 2020/21 risk, this does afford the 
systems key priorities and ensure that we can continues to ensure that Salford is well 
placed to recover and restore services following the devastating impact of the pandemic.  

 

3.4 There is still work to finalise the position of each fund and to ensure the risk is balanced 
across commissioners and consequently a detailed opening budget paper will be 
presented at the next committee meeting.  

Page 41



   

 

 

 

4. Risks and next steps 

4.1 Whilst the locality has developed a plan with an acceptable level of financial risk, the 
NHS hasn’t yet received planning guidance or allocation figures. Planning guidance isn’t 
expected until the end of March potentially early April.  

 

4.2 The NHS will still be under command and control arrangements for Q1 of 2021/22 and 
whilst we expect this to replicate month’s 7-12 of 2020/21, guidance has still not been 
released. Discussions are still being held nationally with Treasury, once finalised, the 
expectation is that organisations will quickly get both Q1 guidance and financial 
allocations. 

 

5. Recommendations 

5.1 The Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) is asked to: 

 Note the financial position of the adults’ services within the Integrated Fund for 2020/21. 

 Note the update relating to 2021/22 as well as risks and next steps. 

 

David Warhurst 

Interim Chief Financial Officer, Salford CCG 

Page 42



 

   

 

 

Please indicate time required to present the paper:  

Adult Commissioning Committee 

Part 1 

Agenda item number:  

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please bold)  

January / February 2021  

Report of: Integrated Commissioning  

Date of paper: 5th January 2021 

Subject: January / February 2021 Adult Mental Health Update 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



 

   

 

 

In case of query please contact: Clare Mayo (clare.mayo@nhs.net) / Judd Skelton 
(judd.skelton@salford.gov.uk)  

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper relates to) 

Priority Selection 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research:   

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services): 

X 

Children’s and Maternity Services:   

Primary Care:   

Enabling Transformation:   

 

Purpose of paper: To provide an update on adult mental health performance 

P
age 44

mailto:clare.mayo@nhs.net
mailto:judd.skelton@salford.gov.uk


 

   

 

 

Further explanatory information required 

Question Answer 

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group? 

The paper provides an overview of the adult mental 
health performance, giving insight into the support 
available for Salford people, the performance of any 
identified support and any potential challenges / 
good practice.  

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated? 

The risks outlined in the paper relate to performance 
and are mitigated with recovery plans as needed.  

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated? 

An equality impact assessment is underway for the 
Living Well / Beyond service, in addition to 
ethnographic research which also incorporates lived 
experience of IAPT services. 

A wider equality action plan is in place across 
mental health services to ensure tracking of actions 
supporting this agenda.    

P
age 45



 

   

 

 

Question Answer 

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them? 

The risks outlined in the paper relate to performance 
and are mitigated with recovery plans as needed. 

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper. 

None 

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper. 

None  

P
age 46



 

   

 

 

Document development 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Public engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

   Ethnographic engagement is 
underway to continuously inform the 
Living Well work. Additional focus has 
been included on IAPT.  

This information will feed into 
service design and the wider 
EIA work to inform action 
plans as the service 
develops.  

Clinical engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

   Clinician involvement is in place as 
part of the Living Well programme. 
Engagement linked to other areas of 
service provision has been increased 
throughout the COVID period. 

Paper has been updated to 
include information to cover 
the covid period.  

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)? 

     

P
age 47



 

   

 

 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 

(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed)  

   A specific EIA is being undertaken for 
the Living Well / Beyond service 
offers. For other services / contracts, 
equality and inequalities have been 
discussed as part of the regular 
performance monitoring discussions. 

 

Legal advice sought 
 

 

  N/A  

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

   DMG 20.01.21 

Lead Member 03.02.21 

 

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work 

P
age 48



 

   

 

 

Adult Mental Health and Suicide Prevention Update 
(January / February) 2021 

1. Executive summary 

1.1 Part A of the paper provides an update against the key work streams and targets for 

Adult Mental Health and Suicide Prevention.  

 

1.2 Part B of the report provides an update on the work of the Living Well Programme 

Key areas from the report to note are:  

 IAPT – Achievement of both the 6 and 18 week referral to treatment targets. The 

prevalence performance is on track to achieve the agreed 22% target for this year. 

Recovery performance is currently below target. 

 Crisis- Referrals to the Liaison team remain consistent with pre-covid referrals. There 

is a reported increase in acuity of presentation. Planning for the implementation of 

the two agreed 24/7 crisis beds and an alternative approach to A+E linked to the 

Living Well Listening Lounge development is underway. 

 Suicide Prevention – A number of voluntary sector grants to support suicide 

prevention projects have been agreed and will be running over the next 18 months. 

Funding of £100k has been agreed to support a pilot with Six Degrees Social 

Enterprise to deliver a Bereavement Counselling pilot with plans for a further 

business case in 2021/22 if the service evaluates well. A GM training offer of suicide 

prevention training is being supported in Salford, with places being offered to 

colleagues in welfare rights and debt advice and wide frontline services such as 

Salford Assist and the Health Improvement Service.  

 Eating Disorders – A business case was supported in 2020 which saw a significant 

increase in investment in this service. As of December 2020, the waiting list has 

been reduced to around 10 people waiting for treatment, which is in line with the 

recovery trajectory mapped out for the service. Work is underway to recruit to the 

new service offer from April 2021. It is envisaged that the early intervention / first 

episode of eating disorders treatment pathway (FREED) is due to be launched 

imminently.   

Page 49



 

   

 

 

 Living Well - A proposal for the future delivery of an ‘extended reach living well’ 

service with the Primary Care Networks (PCNs) has been approved at Primary Care 

Commissioning Committee, resulting in investment of £954K.  Staff are expected to 

be in post for April 2021. The Living Well MDT is now operating across Broughton, 

supporting people who are not reaching the criteria for secondary care mental health 

services but require more support than primary care can offer.  

 

 

2. PART A: ADULT MENTAL HEALTH UPDATE 

The 5 Year Forward View for Mental Health (5YFV) and the NHS Long Term Plan sets out 

a range of targets for mental health. This paper provides an update on the current adult 

mental health performance against the key targets locally, along with an update on the 

additional mental health work streams, aligning with ongoing work across Greater 

Manchester.  

 

2.1 Response to Covid 19 

It is widely recognised that Covid-19 has had, and will have, a significant impact on the 

mental health and wellbeing of the population, particularly in light of social distancing and 

self-isolation, anxiety regarding current and impending economic uncertainty, anxiety 

around contracting the virus and people experiencing complex grief on an unprecedented 

scale. Many people who rely on formal support networks may have found that they were 

cancelled, face to face social interactions have been limited and informal support networks 

have been reduced due to illness and/or caring responsibilities 

Following a review of priority areas in light of COVID-19, three key areas have been 

identified:  

 Mental Health Crisis and Urgent Care   

 Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)  

 Living Well  

Additional areas for consideration in relation to further planning following the COVID-19 

respond are in relation to:  

 Memory Assessment Teams (MATs) and dementia diagnosis rate recovery  

 Anticipated demand for mental health support  

Page 50



 

   

 

 

 New presentations – people experiencing mental health needs for the first 

time  

 Existing service users who may not have accessed support  

 Increased range of diagnosis – e.g. Prolonged Complex Bereavement 

Disorder, Post Traumatic Stress Disorder, Obsessive Compulsive Disorder – 

ensure that we have the expertise and capacity in our system to respond  

 Mental Health needs of BAME communities.  

The following summary provides an overview of the performance and developments in 

mental health, including an update on the service delivery / considerations following 

COVID-19.  

2.2 Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)  

“The Mental Health Five Year Forward View Implementation Plan and NHS Long Term Plan 

set out the ambition to increase access to integrated evidence-based psychological 

therapies, with a target of 22% prevalence for 2020/2021. In addition to prevalence targets, 

there are IAPT targets in place for referral to treatment (RTT) in 6 and 18 weeks and 

recovery targets for improvements in anxiety and depression throughout treatment. 

Published data is obtained nationally and is usually 3 months behind. Local data collected 

from the services provides a more up to date picture.  

2.2.1 Mental Health: Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT):   

 

NHS Digital released the Sept and Oct 2020 IAPT data on the 14th January 2021. This is the 

first release of data from version 2.0 of the IAPT dataset. The output publication report is in a 

different format and includes additional fields. The CCG would like to interrogate the dataset 

fully before releasing the data into systems and reports to ensure that we are confident in its 

accuracy.  Any issues we will flag to the national team and liaise directly with our providers.   

 

Therefore, the latest data in this report is August 2020 published data and November 2020 

local data.   

 Prevalence- Published data for August 2020 shows that performance is currently 

at 1.7%. This is on track to achieve the GM agreed 22% target for this year and is 

well on the way to achieve the 25% target due to be implemented in the future. 

The November local data shows a position of 2.1%  

 

 Recovery- August published data reports that performance was 44.6% which is 

below the recovery target of 50%. Local November data reports that recovery is at 

Page 51



 

   

 

 

45.7%  Anecdotal evidence suggests that there has been an increase in 

complexity within the referrals received by the service.    

 

 6 weeks – Published data for August performance is 71.7% which is below target 
but shows an improvement on the July published data. Local data shows 
performance for November at 90.1% which achieves target and is an improvement 
on the September local data. Six Degrees have shown achievement of the 6 week 
waiting times target in local data for the past two months, slightly ahead of their 
improvement trajectory.  

 

 18 weeks - Published performance is showing the August position as achieving 
the 18 week target with performance of 95%. Local November data suggests that 
performance is 97.8% which exceeds the target 

.    

Both Six Degrees and GMMH have been delivering therapy via telephone and / or video 
conferencing throughout the pandemic. Evaluation of the acceptability and effectiveness of 
video conferencing within the GMMH service has been undertaken and was viewed 
favourably by staff and service users.  

Six Degrees has continued to see the benefit of counselling staff, with practitioners 
targeting the GP surgeries with the longest waiters. The value of this staff group is widely 
recognised in the service. The service has recruited additional trainees and existing 
experienced staff are now returning from maternity leave.  

Both Six Degrees and GMMH IAPT services have been exploring a return to face to face 
offers of therapy. GMMH are planning for an offer of some face to face sessions being 
made available from late January, focusing on people who had struggled to access online / 
telephone therapy. Six Degrees are working towards face to face offers being in place in the 
first quarter of the year. There are currently no people waiting for face to face offers via Six 
Degrees. These plans will be dependent on the latest government guidance.  

Overall referral numbers are showing an increasing picture, demonstrating that the volume 
of referrals is operating at pre-Covid levels. There was a drop in referrals throughout August 
and over the holiday period; however this is in line with a typical pattern of referrals.  

Silver Cloud (online therapeutic packages supported by IAPT workers) are now integrated 
into Six Degrees data flow and is being operationalised as part of the service in two GP 
surgeries as a pilot approach to ensure that processes are embedded. Planning is ongoing 
for wider roll out. Public Silver Cloud packages are available without IAPT support.  

 

 

Page 52



 

   

 

 

2.3 Perinatal Mental Health 

There are three elements to Perinatal Mental Health requirements in the 5 Year Forward 

View and NHS Long Term Plan:  

 Specialist community psychiatric input required to meet the needs of people who 

are the most acutely unwell. This workstream is commissioned and provided at a 

GM level with GMMH being commissioned to provide this service across GM 

since they are also the provider of the existing GM Mother and Baby unit. The 

service is live and works with GPs and local services to ensure appropriate 

referrals.  

 The second workstream focuses on the provision of psychological therapies for 

people with perinatal mental health difficulties. As part of the phase 2 business 

case for IAPT, two perinatal high intensity posts were created. These posts sit in 

GMMH. There is agreement for these posts to be co-located with a potential 

wider Parent Infant Mental Health (PIMH) team (as outlined below).   

 The third workstream focuses on addressing attachment and bonding issues via 

early intervention approaches. A PIMH team framework is provided from GM and 

a business case has been approved to support the development of a local team. 

This work is sitting with children’s commissioning as the lead.   

 

2.4 Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) 

NHS England states “The access and waiting time standard requires that more than 60% of 

people experiencing first episode psychosis will be treated with a NICE recommended 

package of care within two weeks of referral”.  

In order to achieve the standard, both the maximum waiting time from referral to treatment 

and access to NICE recommended care must be met. Success is measured as ‘more than 

60% of people experiencing a first episode of psychosis are treated with a NICE 

recommended care package within two weeks of referral’.  

Please note that national data relating to current EIP performance has been delayed. 

Therefore the most up to date published information is for September 2020 which shows 

performance of 71% which meets the national target. The recent review of progress 

following the implementation of the approved business case (total investment £269,909) 

showed a successful pilot of an assessment function approach (resulting in the non-

recurrent element of this investment being agreed as recurrent) and detailed a full service 

Page 53



 

   

 

 

improvement plan to achieve the required level 3 standard, as determined by the annual 

national assessment.  

 

2.5 Adult Mental Health Crisis and Urgent Care Services 

The 5YFV outlines that: ‘at least 50% of acute hospitals should meet the core 24 service 

standard for mental health liaison as a minimum. People presenting with a mental health 

need in A&E departments and on physical health wards will have access to swift an 

compassionate assessment of their mental health needs and high quality NICE 

recommended care, 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. There will be a reduction in 

inappropriate inpatient admissions, shorter length of stay, reduction in delayed transfers of 

care and reduced readmissions’ 

 

Salford CCG has invested considerably in development of its local Mental Health Liaison 

Service - £1.2m in 2013. Salford has secured some of the GM transformation funds (circa 

£630K in wave 1) to develop this further to be fully CORE24 compliant and meet all targets.  

 

Referrals to the Liaison team remain consistent with pre-covid referrals. There is a reported 

increase in acuity of presentation which is leading to an increase in the time needed to 

complete assessments. The team manager is leading a review in relation to this to improve 

performance. An increased admission rate has also been noted more recently. This will be 

picked up in the GMMH Commissioning meeting for further exploration.  

 

Planning for the implementation of the two agreed 24/7 crisis beds and an alternative 

approach to A+E linked to the Living Well Listening Lounge development is underway. 

 

2.6 Suicide Prevention Strategy 

Reduction of deaths by suicide by a target of 10% was set as a national target in the 5YFV. 

A Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention Executive is in place which is overseeing the 

implementation of the GM Suicide Prevention Strategy and action plan.  Salford is well 

connected into this with the Assistant Director for Integrated Commissioning being the Chair 

of the GM Suicide Prevention Programme Board and Steering Group  

The action plan for the Salford Suicide Prevention Partnership was reviewed at the close of 

2020, resulting in the following priority areas of focus:  

 Suicide Prevention and economic adversity  

Page 54



 

   

 

 

 Reduction of access to means  

 Support to frontline staff  

 

These priority areas will be in line with those of the GM Suicide Prevention Partnership. In 

addition, learning from the Lived Experience Project (ethnographic research providing 

insight into the strengths and challenges experienced by people with lived experience) and 

from the ‘Grief to Hope’ report will also inform the priority actions .  

Suicide prevention first aid training is being offered via GM to each of the 10 localities. This 

will prioritise training to people delivering welfare rights and debt advice services, services 

supporting people experiencing domestic violence and other key support services e.g. 

housing. Locally, there is an approach to ensure that we have representation on the training 

from our key services which are our frontline offers to local people throughout the pandemic 

(e.g. SCC welfare rights and debt advice, Citizen’s Advice, Salford Assist, Health 

Improvement Team, Spirit of Salford etc).  

The VCSE Grants process, administered by CVS has supported a range of grants relating 

to suicide prevention. These projects will be staggered over the next 18 months and 

include:  

 Yaran North West - Psycho-educational suicide prevention courses specifically 

designed for people from minority ethnic backgrounds.  

 Manchester Doulas - Antenatal and postnatal support including a combination of 

practical, emotional and educational support, Rewind therapy, and maintaining the 

supportive community.  

 Gaddum – Male carers support project – a test of a support offer to male carers 

experiencing feelings of depression, isolation and suicide.  

There are a small number of additional projects also in exploration.  

Funding of £100k has been agreed to support a pilot with Six Degrees Social Enterprise to 

deliver a Bereavement Counselling pilot with plans for a further business case in 2021/22 if 

the service evaluates well. This approach will focus on not just bereavement by suicide but 

also wider experiences of bereavement by providing flexible, tailored interventions with the 

ability to adapt to supporting people with bereavement and complex grief. This will work 

alongside the GM Bereavement /Bereavement by Suicide service.  

 

Page 55



 

   

 

 

2.7 VCSE Mental Health Grants Funding  

Transformation Funding from Greater Manchester has been allocated to the VCSE sector to 

support a grants programme, administered by Salford CVS.  

In addition to the suicide prevention grants outlined in 2.6; a further round of grants were 

announced in 2020. These focused on the priority areas of:  

 Loss (including bereavement, loss of role / identity / job loss etc)  

 Parents and Families (working with adults to prevent the cycle of poor mental 

health and trauma).  

 Substance Misuse  

These grant areas attracted up to £70k per area for delivery over an 18 month period to 

align with the Living Well programme.  

The substance misuse grant was awarded to Society Inc to provide a wrap-around support 

package for people who are experiencing mental health problems and substance misuse 

needs but don’t meet secondary care mental health service criteria (i.e. part of the Living 

Well cohort).  

The bid submissions for loss and parent / family support did not fully meet the identified 

needs. Therefore, a range of VCSE Living Well partners, in collaboration with one of the 

bidders have worked together to develop a proposal for an integrated offer of support which 

fully meets the identified needs. This is in the early stages of development and will align 

with the Living Well offer.   

2.8 Adult Community Eating Disorders  

A business case was supported in 2020 which saw a significant increase in investment in 

this service.  Following the business case, two stages of work have been undertaken:  

 Addressing the waiting list Implementation of the new service delivery requirements 

As of December 2020, the waiting list has been reduced to around 10 people waiting for 

treatment, which is in line with the recovery trajectory mapped out for the service. Once 

those waiting for treatment have been addressed, the waiting list resource will then look to 

address routine referrals for assessment.  

Recruitment is underway to support the new posts outlined in the business case as required 

to achieve the requirements of the business case:  

 Align with CYP referral to treatment targets (urgent in one week or less, standard in 4 

weeks or less), 

Page 56



 

   

 

 

 Implement an early intervention pathway for people with first episode eating 

disorders,  

 Delivery of family therapy (in line with CYP offers),  

 Implementation of a severe and enduring eating disorder pathway and  

 Provision of medical input to manage bloods and subsequent results. 

 

It is envisaged that the early intervention / first episode of eating disorders treatment 

pathway (FREED) is due to be launched imminently.   

 

2.09 Dementia Diagnosis Rate  

 

The latest published data for the dementia diagnosis rate is December 2021.   

Published data for December 2020 shows that performance is currently at 70.3%. This is 

below the GM target of 77.8% but above the national target of 66.7%.  Prior to the 

pandemic, this target was being achieved.  

 

2.9.1 Memory Assessment Team (MATS) 

In the early stages of the pandemic, staff from MATS were redeployed to address frontline 

ward pressures and the service was closed to new referrals.  

Following the service reopening in the summer, referrals were addressed swiftly and the 

number of referrals being received into the service, whilst not back to pre-covid levels, has 

started to increase.  

Since this time, the service has worked flexibly to meet people’s needs via a more blended 

approach to delivery.  

Due to the new national lockdown and the advice to return to shielding, there is a likelihood 

that people with significant health conditions or who have increased risk will self-select to 

‘opt out’ of services due to concerns about safety. This is likely to be particularly relevant to 

the cohort of people accessing the MATs service and therefore may impact performance in 

the future.  

 

Page 57



 

   

 

 

 

3. PART B: LIVING WELL SALFORD PROGRAMME UPDATE 

B1.1 Living Well 

The Living Well UK Programme is a national three year programme to help us think 

differently about mental health support. It will help Salford to focus on people’s skills, 

aspirations and experiences to build a different way of offering support and help. Over the 

last eight years, Lambeth has been changing their mental health support to help everyone 

who experiences mental health difficulties to work towards recovery, stay well, make their 

own choices and take part in everyday life. Salford, Luton, Edinburgh and Tameside and 

Glossop have all been picked to learn from this work as part of a programme funded by the 

National Lottery Community Fund. Salford will be working with the Innovation Unit, a not for 

profit social enterprise. The Innovation Unit will help all of the sites in the Living Well UK 

programme to develop their own local systems to meet the needs of local people.  We are 

calling this work Living Well Salford.  

As part of the NHS Long Term Plan, localities are being asked to realign community mental 

health services with primary care networks (PCNs), creating ‘new and integrated models of 

primary and community mental health care’ by 2023/24. NHS England has published a 

Community Mental Health Framework, giving further detail on what these models of care 

might look like, with a range of models currently being tested.  To support these integrated 

models, Mental Health Practitioner (MHP) roles are included in the GP Contract Additional 

Roles Reimbursement Scheme from April 2021. A proposal for the future delivery of an 

‘extended reach living well’ service with the PCNs has been approved at Primary Care 

Commissioning Committee in November 2020, resulting in investment of £954K.  Staff are 

expected to be in post for April 2021.   

The Living Well MDT is now operating across Broughton, supporting people who are not 

reaching the criteria for secondary care mental health services but require more support 

than primary care can offer.  

Input from the national Innovation Unit has been extended until the end of March 2022 due 

to the impact of COVID on the wider national programme. This will support our timescale to 

develop a business case in the summer of 2021 and will allow us to access a longer period 

of external evaluation.  

 

 

Page 58



 

   

 

 

B1.2 Beyond 

Throughout the COVID-19 response, the Beyond service offer (a collaboration between 

Mind in Salford, Start and Six Degrees) was established to meet the citywide mental health 

needs of people not known to GMMH as one of the offers under the Spirit of Salford 

response.  

Whilst the flow of referrals into Beyond has fluctuated (often in line with national lockdown 
announcements), the service has been developing partnerships with additional trusted 
referral partners (e.g. Keep in Touch service, Health Improvement and Wellbeing Matters). 
There has also been a developed pathway into the IAPT services for those who would 
benefit.  

 

7. Recommendations 

7.1 Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of the report.  

 

Name (Author): Clare Mayo  

Job title: Integrated Commissioning Manager 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Adult Mental Health Update 

Adult Commissioning Committee 

March 2021

P
age 61



BACKGROUND

• Key areas of focus: 

– Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 

(IAPT)

– Crisis 

– Living Well 

– Adult Community Eating Disorders

– Suicide Prevention 

P
age 62



IMPROVING ACCESS TO 

PSYCHOLOGICAL THERAPIES (IAPT)
• Latest published data shows: 

– Achievement of referral to treatment targets for both 6 weeks and 18 
weeks. 

– Performance against the prevalence target is on track to achieve the 
22% target for this year and is well on the way towards the 25% target 
due to be implemented in the future. 

– Recovery performance is just below the expected 50% target. 

• Both Six Degrees and GMMH are exploring a return to limited face 
to face offers (GMMH anticipate this being possible in late January, 
Six Degrees suggest that this may be in the first quarter of 2021/22. 
All services continue to provide support online and via telephone. 

• Workforce challenges are improving through trainee recruitment, 
diverse workforce and returning experienced practitioners. The 
focus is now on sustainability of the workforce. 

P
age 63



CRISIS

• Planning underway to explore an alternative 

offer to A+E for people presenting in mental 

health crisis 

• Implementation of two intermediate care 

mental health beds, staffed by Home Based 

Treatment staffing. 

P
age 64



SUICIDE PREVENTION 

• Review of local action plan to focus on key areas including: 
– Suicide prevention and economic adversity 

– Reduction of access to means

– Support to frontline staff 

• Local frontline services supported to access 60 places on GM 
Suicide Prevention Training (priority staffing includes Welfare Rights 
and Debt Advice, Citizen’s Advice, Domestic Abuse support services,  
Health Improvement Team, Food Bank staff, etc). 

• Voluntary sector grants process has resulted in a number of small 
grants to support suicide prevention approaches across a range of 
key groups (including: men, BAME communities, male carers). 

• Funding of £100k agreed to support a bereavement counselling 
service, offering support to people experiencing bereavement. 

P
age 65



ADULT COMMUNITY EATING 

DISORDERS SERVICE

• Following the business case to support additional 
investment in the service, two stages of work have 
progressed: 

– Addressing waiting list

– Recruitment underway to support new posts in the business 
case. 

– This will ensure that the service: 
• aligns with children and young people’s referral to treatment targets,

• implements an early intervention pathway for people with first 
episode eating disorders, 

• Offers family therapy in line with children and young people offers

• Provision of medical input to manage bloods and subsequent results 
and implementation of a severe and enduring eating disorder 
pathway. 

P
age 66



LIVING WELL 

• Investment of £945k agreed by Primary Care 

Commissioning Committee to support ‘extended 

reach Living Well’. Staff expected to be in post for 

April 2021.

• Living Well Multi-disciplinary team operating 

across Broughton.

• Input from the national Innovation Unit extended 

until end of March 2022. 

• Work aligns with expectations regarding 

transforming  Community Mental Health services  

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
  
 

                                                           
 
   
 

 

 
SERVICE AND FINANCE GROUP  
AGENDA ITEM NO: 7 
 
Item for Decision/Assurance/Information  
 
10 March 2021 
 

Report of: 
 

Leanne Windsor 
Service Improvement Manager 
 
Karen Proctor 
Director of Commissioning  

Date of Paper:  
 

2 October 2020 

Subject: 
 

Cancer Waiting Time Report 

In case of query  
Please contact: 
 

Leanne Windsor 
leanne.windsor@nhs.net 
 

Strategic Priorities:  Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to: 
 

 Quality of Care 

 Population Health and Prevention 

 Integrated Community Based Care and Long Term Conditions  

 Transforming Hospital Care 

 Mental Health and Learning Disabilities  

 Enabling Transformation  

Purpose of Paper: 
 
This report provides an update and assurance on Cancer contract performance in relation 

to services commissioned by Salford CCG and Salford City Council. 

A range of data sources, including national and local performance & quality indicators 

together with ‘softer’ intelligence provided by CCG commissioners is used to: 

 Summarise performance in relation to cancer services against national targets, 

 Detail specific exceptions relating to contract performance compliance, including 

recommendations and/or agreed mitigating actions, as necessary, 

 Provide context in relation to the impact of performance compliance on specific 

cancer work streams / projects, including any impact on other programme areas, 

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the update. 

 

 
 
Further explanatory information required 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7

mailto:leanne.windsor@nhs.net


 
  
 

                                                           
 
   
 

 

 
HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP? 
 

 
By presenting any areas of pressure / 
underperformance, appropriate actions can be 
identified and implemented to support 
improvements. 

 
WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED? 
  

 
N/A 

 
WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED? 
 

 
N/A 

 
DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH OR EXTREME 
RISKS FACING THE 
ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT ARE 
THEY AND HOW DOES THIS PAPER 
REDUCE THEM? 
 

 
N/A 

 
PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER. 
 

 
N/A 

 
PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER: 
 

 
N/A 

Footnote: 
 
Members of NHS Salford Clinical Commissioning Group – Service and Finance Group will read all papers 
thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no amendments are possible. 
 

Page 70



 
   

 
 

3 
 

Document Development 
 

Process Yes No 
Not 

Applicable 

Comments and Date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome 

Public Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation) 

 
 

   

Clinical Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation) 

 
 

   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how these 
will be managed)  

 

 

   

Legal Advice Sought      

Presented to the Commissioning Committee      

Presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board      

Presented to the Integrated Adult Health and 
Care Commissioning Joint Committee 

  
   

Presented to any other groups or committees, 
including Partnership Groups 

(Please specify in comments) 

 
 

   

 
Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work. 

P
age 71



 

4 
 

Cancer Service Report  
 

1.  Executive Summary 

 
This paper provides an update on work programmes relating to Cancer Care.  It outlines the following: 
 

 current performance against relevant NHS Constitutional Standards 

 the impact of COVID-19  
 

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of this report and comment as appropriate. 
 

 

2.  CCG Cancer Performance Against National and Local Indicators 

 
Whilst cancer services have remained a priority area for the NHS during the pandemic, COVID-19 has 
significantly impacted on cancer waiting time standards nationwide.  
 
There are eleven cancer waiting time (CWT) indicators with set performance targets which CCGs have a 
responsibility to deliver. The table below shows the CCGs performance against all CWT indicators as at 
December 2020 and highlights the following:  
 

 Current month activity and breaches 

 RAG rated current month performance compared and trended with performance for the same 
month in the previous year 

 Year to date performance RAG rated against national CWT targets   
 

  December 2020     

Cancer Waiting Times (CWT) 

Indicator Description 

CWT 

Target 
Total 
Seen 

Seen in 
Target 

Breaches 
Perform- 

ance 
Decemb
er 19/20 

Trend 
YTD 
20/21 

Cancer Patients - 2 Week Waits (2WW) 
(Urgent GP Referral) 
% seen within two weeks of an urgent GP 
referral for suspected cancer 

93% 927 795 132 85.8% 88.5% 
 

 

89.7% 

Cancer Patients - 2 Week Waits  
(Breast Symptoms) 
% seen within two weeks of an urgent 
referral for breast symptoms where cancer 
was not initially suspected 

93% 77 23 54 29.9% 62.7%  44.0% 

Cancer Waits - 28 Days  
(Faster Diagnosis Standard) 
% receiving a communication of diagnosis 
for cancer or a ruling out of cancer, or a 
decision to treat if made before 
communication of diagnosis within 28 days 

70% 946 721  76.2% 
New for 
20/21 N/A 

 
 

72.3% 

Cancer Waits - 31 Days (All Cancers) 
% receiving first definitive treatment within 
one month (31-days) of a cancer diagnosis 

96% 

 
92 84 8 91.3% 97.2%  94.2% 

Cancer Waits - 31 Days (Surgery) 
% receiving subsequent treatment for 
cancer within 31-days where that treatment 
is surgery 

94% 27 27 0 100% 99.6%  

 

93.5% 

Cancer Waits - 31 Days (Drugs) 
% receiving subsequent treatment for 
cancer within 31-days, where that treatment 
is an Anti-Cancer Drug Regimen 

98% 17 16 1 94.1% 99.6%  98.8% 

Cancer Waits - 31 Days (Radiotherapy) 
% receiving subsequent treatment for 
cancer within 31-days, where that treatment 
is a Radiotherapy Treatment Course 

94% 31 31 0 100% 99.3%  99.6% 

Cancer Waits - 62 Days  
(Urgent GP Referral) 85% 47 35 12 74.5% 77.8%  75.5% 

Page 72



 

5 
 

% receiving first definitive treatment for 
cancer within two months (62 days) of an 
urgent GP referral for suspected cancer 

Cancer Waits - 62 Days  
(Decision to Upgrade) 
% receiving first definitive treatment for 
cancer within 62-days of a consultant 
decision to upgrade their priority status 

85% 29 27 2 93.1% 82.5%  81.8% 

Cancer Waits - 62 Days  
(Screening Service) 
% receiving first definitive treatment for 
cancer within 62-days of referral from an 
NHS Cancer Screening Service 

90% 7 6 1 85.7% 87.4%  90.0% 

Cancer Waits  >104 days (CCG) 
Salford CCG patients waiting 104 days or 
more from referral to the first definitive 
treatment 

0   1 1 
New for 

20/21 
N/A 63 

 

3.  Breach Analysis 

 

December 2020 performance shows four of the eleven measures met target, a breakdown of the seven 
CWT indicators that did not meet target is detailed below. 
 

 Cancer Patients - 2 Week Waits (Urgent GP Referral) 
In order to meet the target for December, 68 more patients would have been needed to be seen 
within two weeks. 
2 Week Waits (Urgent GP Referral) are at 123.9% of last year’s levels 

 
There were 132 breaches reported in December 

o 113 of these breaches are for suspected breast cancer, with 87 of these breaches taking 
place at MFT 

In terms of the delay reason, please see table below: 
 

Delay Reason Breaches 

Out-patient capacity inadequate (i.e. no cancelled clinic, but not enough slots for this PATIENT) 65 

Other reason (not listed) 53 

PATIENT choice delay relating to first Out-Patient Appointment 14 

Total Breaches 132 

 

 Cancer Patients - 2 Week Waits (Breast Symptoms) 
In order to meet the target for December, 49 more patients would have been needed to be seen 
within two weeks. 
2 Week Waits (Breast Symptoms) are at 72.6% of last year’s levels 
 

There were 54 breaches reported in December.  In terms of delay reasons, please see table below: 
 Breaches 

MFT  

Out-patient capacity inadequate (i.e. no cancelled clinic, but not enough slots for this PATIENT) 18 

Other reason (not listed) 12 

Bolton FT  

Out-patient capacity inadequate (i.e. no cancelled clinic, but not enough slots for this PATIENT) 18 

Clinic cancellation 1 

Pennine Acute  

Out-patient capacity inadequate (i.e. no cancelled clinic, but not enough slots for this PATIENT) 5 

Total Breaches 54 

 

Page 73



 

6 
 

 

 Cancer Waits - 31 Days (All Cancers) 
In order to meet the target for December, 5 more patients would have been needed to be treated 
within 31 days. 
31 Days (All Cancers) are at 84.4% of last year’s levels 

 

 Cancer Waits - 31 Days (Drug- second or subsequent treatment) 
In order to meet the target for December, 1 more patients would have been needed to be treated within 
31 days. 
 

 Cancer Waits - 62 Days (Urgent GP Referral) 

In order to meet the target for December, 6 more patients would have been needed to be treated 
within 62 days. 
62 Days (Urgent GP Referral) are at 111.9% of last year’s levels 

 

 Cancer Waits - 62 Days (Screening) 
In order to meet the target for December, 1 more patients would have been needed to be treated within 
62 days 

 

 104+ Day Waits 
The 104+ day wait measure is not a national measure, however the CCG are monitoring this 
against a zero tolerance target. 
Please note this measure is based on ‘Number of patients waiting more than 104 days from referral 
to the first definitive treatment’ 

 
In December 2020, one patient was reported as waiting more than 104 days from referral to first 
definitive treatment, delay reason – patient choice;  this is an improvement on previous months, 
although the ambition is a zero tolerance of anyone waiting this long.  The Year to Date figure is 63. 

 

4.   Breach Analysis by Provider Trust 

 

Salford CCG patients receive cancer treatment at a range of Providers. The table below shows the seven 

December 2020 CCG CWT breaches referred to above broken down by hospital provider.  

 

Indicator Target 

 
GM  

December 
20  

 

CCG 
Performance 

Breaches by Provider Trust 

Dece
mber 

20 
YTD MFT BFT SRFT Christie PAT 

 
Blackp

ool  
2WW – Urgent GP 

Referrals 93% % 85.8% 89.7% 87 3 19 
 

23 
 

2WW – Breast Symptoms 
93% % 29.9% 44.0% 30 19  

 
5 

 

31 Day Waits – All Cancers 
96%  91.3% 94.2% 1 2 3 1  1 

31 Day Waits – 2nd or 
subsequent treatment - 

Drugs 
98% % 94.1% 98.8%    

 
1  

 

62 Day Waits – Urgent GP 
Referral 

(First treatment provider) 
85%  74.5% 75.5% 3 1 2 6 1.  

 

62 Day Waits – Following 
Screening 90% % 85.7% 90.0%  1  

 
 

 

Waiting 104 days or more 
from referral to first 
definitive treatment 

0  1 63   1   

 

Page 74



 

7 
 

 

With the exception of Manchester Foundation Trust (MFT), Salford CCG breach numbers at individual 
Provider Trusts are small.  
 
MFT report that all cancer referrals are triaged and the most clinically urgent prioritised for assessment and 
treatment, meaning that those assessed as less urgent are waiting longer. In addition, despite patients 
being assured that the hospital site is COVID secure with strict adherence to Public Health England (PHE) 
hygiene requirements and social distancing measures, a proportion of patients are continuing to defer 
outpatient appointments due to fears about COVID-19, which has resulted in patients rebooking to a later 
date and triggering breaches. Manchester CCG has been asked for further information about capacity 
issues at MFT and cancer waiting times recovery plans. 
 

5. Key Highlights 

 

Performance against CWT targets has started to improve and cancer services remain a priority area for the 
NHS.  The NHS is now in Phase 3 recovery, with national guidance issued on the 31 December 2020 
identifying the following areas to focus on, in respect of cancer services: 
 

 To return to pre-pandemic levels of suspected cancer referrals 

 To increase the treatment numbers for cancer patients 

 To reduce the backlog of those waiting for treatment 

 
Salford and GM are seeing improvements in all these areas. The following key points provide some 
background to the main challenges and issues. 
 
GP Suspected Cancer Referrals 
Cancer services have remained open during the COVID-19 pandemic with national and local 
communications encouraging patients to not delay contacting their GP with any worrying signs or 
symptoms and to attend hospital settings for appointments and cancer diagnostic tests. 
 
The October 2020 update to Commissioning Committee referred to ‘missing referrals’ (the referrals that 
were not made in the Spring 2020 as patients were not presenting to their GP practice).  In recent months 
GP cancer referrals have begun to meet or exceed pre-pandemic levels, suggesting GP’s may be making 
up for some of these ‘missing referrals’. 
 

 
 
Cancer referrals are returning to normal levels for all tumour groups with the exception of lung cancer.  At 
the end of December 2020, suspected lung cancer referrals were 25% lower for Salford CCG compared to 
pre-Covid levels (27.01.2020). Local and national work on addressing this with patient and professional 
facing communications is ongoing. 

Page 75



 

8 
 

 
Cancer Diagnostics 
Although diagnostic tests for suspected cancer patients have continued throughout the pandemic and are 
the highest priority, waiting times still remain longer than they were previously.  
 
GM are operating a collective approach to managing and clearing the endoscopy waiting list with the 
development of a single GM system management for these procedures, utilising capacity across all NHS 
and Independent Sector providers. 
 
 

6. Reducing Risk of Potential Harm 

 
Pre-Covid, SRFT had agreed to complete a Root Cause Analysis (RCA) for every 62 day and 104 day 
cancer treatment waiting time breach. These were due to be shared at the Trust’s Quality and Patient 
Experience Committee (QPE), which is attended by the CCG’s Director of Quality and Innovation. Given 
the significant increase in numbers of these breaches, this is no longer a viable option. SRFT have looked 
at completing a reduced review for each of these patients but have estimated that the review process itself 
would remove too much consultant time and the focus has to be recovery. The QPE is exploring further 
options to assess potential harm. 
 
However, a number of actions are being taken to reduce the risk of harm to cancer patients;  
 

 Prioritising assessment, diagnosis and treatment of suspected cancer and confirmed cancer 
patients 

 Outpatient consultations and non-surgical treatments taking place virtually as appropriate  

 All cancer patients have regular contact with a specialist nurse, who provides support with 
maintenance of their condition, pain management etc.  

 
 

7. Other Cancer Service Updates 

 
A number of initiatives have been implemented in order to improve the patient outcomes for cancer 
services. Updates on these are below: 
 
Lung Health Check  
Suspected cancer referral levels will continue to be closely monitored. Local, Greater Manchester and 
national approaches to encouraging patients to present to their GP with symptoms remains a priority. 
 
Lung Health Checks (LHC) service commenced in September 2019 as a pilot to systematically check for 
early onset of respiratory diseases including lung cancer. It is targeted at individuals who are aged 55–74 
years and are current or previous smokers or for whom smoking status in unknown by their GP.  
 
The service was suspended in March 2020 due to COVID and restarted in August 2020, albeit at reduced 
capacity and using telephone assessments rather than face to face appointments.  
  
Key LHC outcomes up to the end of December 2020 include: 
 

 2,841 patients accepted their invitation to attend for a Lung Health Check 

 23 lung cancers and 8 other cancers detected 

 A wide range of other, non-malignant, respiratory illnesses have also been identified  

 All smokers are offered support to stop smoking 
 

Page 76



 

9 
 

 
Cancer RDC (Rapid Diagnostic Centre) 
In close collaboration with GM Cancer and MFT, the Northern Care Alliance (NCA), which is the NHS 
Group formed by bringing together Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust and the Pennine Acute Hospitals 
NHS Trust, has pioneered the development in GM of the Rapid Diagnostic Centre model as a key service 
innovation with enormous potential to drive radical change at the front end of cancer pathways.  
 
The Cancer Rapid Diagnostic Centre (RDC) model of care has had a live pathway since June 2020 and is 
the first to go live in Greater Manchester (GM). The objective is to see patients who have vague symptoms 
of cancer, whether referred from a GP or triaged from other two week pathways into the RDC. The RDC 
team carry out the diagnostics testing to either exclude cancer or refer the patient to the correct specialist 
team. There will be then further investigations, biopsy’s and then onto treatment. The RDC currently sits 
within primary and secondary care pathways and is delivered from two sites, with two days at SRFT and 
two days at Rochdale Infirmary, but the future vision is to have the pathway outside of the hospital setting 
and into a community pathway, once the facilities exist to do this. 
 
The RDC have seen 728 referrals to date, which is high compared to other RDC’s nationally. The results 
are positive; cancer is being identified and the conversion rate is 5% and clearly shows the need for the 
pathway.  The RDC is operating at speed; the average time from referral to diagnosis is 6 calendar days.  
 
The radiology team, ‘hot reporting’, means results are available within two hours, this is a pilot for the RDC 
pathway only, but the hope is to extend this to other cancer pathways in the future.  It is working well, and 
the feedback from patients on their experience has been very positive. 
 
RDC is largely dependent on CT scanning, so majority of patients have either been confirmed or excluded 
from cancer, based on that single diagnostic. SRFT are currently using less endoscopy, gastroscopy and 
colonoscopy on this pathway than anticipated and the pick-up rate on cancer results has been good.  SRFT 
are seeing a wide range of cancer diagnosed through the RDC.  
 
The development of RDCs is progressing well at NCA (on both the Salford and Pennine sites).  Although 
the RDC programme is a 5 year programme, with targeted funding until 2024, Salford CCG, in collaboration 
with GM Cancer Alliance, is working to address the future sustainability of this initiative.  
 
 

8. Recommendation  

 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to: 
 

 Note the contents of this report  
 
Leanne Windsor 
Service Improvement Manager 
Salford CCG 
 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

                                                           
 
   
 

 

Adult Commissioning Committee  
PART I  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 8 
 
Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)   
 
10 March 2021 
 

Report of: 
 

Karen Proctor 
Director of Commissioning, SCCG 
 
Annette Donegani, 
Senior Service Improvement Manager, 
SCCG 
 

Date of Paper: 
 

3 March 2021 

Subject: 
 

Scheduled Care Update 

In case of query  
Please contact: 
 

Annette Donegani 
annette.donegani@nhs.net 
 

Strategic Priorities:  Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to: 
 
 

 Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research 

 Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services) 

 Children’s and Maternity Services 

 Primary Care 

 Enabling Transformation 

Purpose of Paper:                                    
 
The purpose of the paper is to update members of Adult Commissioning Committee on 
work programmes relating to Scheduled Care.   

 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of this report and comment as 
appropriate.  
 
 
 

 
  

Page 79

Agenda Item 8

mailto:annette.donegani@nhs.net


  
 

                                                           
 
   
 

Further explanatory information required 
 

 
HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP? 
 

 
Monitoring NHS provider’s performance against 
NHS constitutional standards ensures Salford 
GP registered residents receive a level of 
service they should expect to receive.  

 
WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED? 
  

 
Long waiting times for non-urgent diagnostic 
tests and elective care are expected due to 
continuing high levels of COVID admissions.  
To be mitigated by reviewing local and GM 
2021/22 recovery plans with secondary care 
providers. 
 

 
WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED? 
 

 
 
N/A 

 
DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM? 
 

 
 
N/A 

 
PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER. 
 

 
 
N/A 

 
PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER: 
 

 
 
N/A 

Footnote: 
 
Members of Adult Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible. 
 

Page 80



 

   
 

 

          
       

Document Development 
 

Process Yes No 
Not 

Applicable 

Comments and Date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome 

Public Engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation) 

     

Clinical Engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation) 

     

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally? 

     

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts? 
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed)  

     

Legal Advice Sought 

 

 

 

    

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

 

 

 

 

 

  CCG Scheduled Care Delivery Board 

CCG Governing Body 

 

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.  

P
age 81



 

                 

Scheduled Care Update Report 
 

1.  Executive Summary 
   

This paper provides an update on work programmes relating to Scheduled Care.  It outlines 
the following: 
 

 current performance against NHS Constitutional Standards for Scheduled Care as 
at December 2020 

 the continuing impact of COVID  

 local and GM actions to accelerate a return to more normal levels of non-urgent 
health care   
 

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of the report and comment as 
appropriate. 

 

2.  Introduction  

 
2.1 Scheduled Care refers to routine non-urgent care and includes the following 

standards and targets:  
 

 Waiting List for Incomplete Pathways  
Incomplete pathways represent those patients waiting for first treatment following 
referral to a consultant-led service. The target is to have fewer patients on the waiting 
list than in January 2020 

 Diagnostics 
This standard ensures that less than 1% of patients wait 6 weeks or more for one of 
the 15 key diagnostic tests and procedures 

 18 Week Referral to Treatment (RTT) 
An RTT pathway is the length of time a patient waits from their referral to starting 
treatment.  This standard has a target of 92% of patients on incomplete pathways 
waiting no more than 18 weeks from referral to starting treatment 

 52 Week Referral to Treatment 
This standard ensures no-one waits more than 52 weeks from referral for treatment 
to start 
 

2.2 All non urgent care and diagnostic tests were completely stood down during the first 
wave of the pandemic from the end of March to the beginning of July 2020 leading to 
increaing waits for patients. 

 
2.3 Since July non-urgent care and diagnostic services have resumed.  However, due to 

a combination of a surge in COVID hospital admissions, rigorous infection control and 
social distancing requirements, together with higher staff absences, increasing 
waiting lists, longer treatment waiting times and diagnostic backlogs remain.   

 
2.4 National performance standards are still in place however due to the COVID 

response financial sanctions for constitutional breaches have been suspended.   
 

Page 82



 

                 

2.5 The CCG are not seeking detailed recovery action plans from providers given the 
huge impact of COVID.  However, the CCG continues to track performance as the 
system starts to step back up services in line with the NHS recovery requirements. 

 
2.6 Recognising the recent surge in infections and the on-going challenges this presents 

stepping back up routine NHS care to pre-COVID levels will need to be flexible, 
balancing the need to safely undertake more non-urgent work with the need to 
respond to COVID demands. 

 
2.7 At the time of writing the successful and rapid roll out of the vaccination programme 

gives a higher degree of confidence that services may be able to plan for a gradual 
and sustained recovery during 2021/22 resulting in improving waiting times for non-
urgent procedures and diagnostic tests. 

 

3. Waiting Lists and GP Referrals 

 
3.1 The table below shows the number of Salford CCG patients on a hospital waiting list 

during 2020 and compares this to the January 2020 baseline figure. 
 

2020 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

24,742 24,588 22,467 20,875 22,441 22,700 24,866 26,649 27,709 28,616 28,208 27,795 

Baseline -0.6% -9.2% -15.6% -9.3% -8.3% +0.5% +7.7% +12.0% +15.7% +14.0% +12.3% 

 

3.2 The reduction in waiting lists from February to June was due to the reduction in 
referrals as a result of COVID, rather than an increase in the number of patients 
being treated.  

 
3.3 Waiting lists have increased since July reflecting an increasing number of GP 

referrals and reduced hospital capacity to treat patients.  
 
3.4 Pre-COVID Salford GP referrals to secondary care averaged around 4,100 per 

month.  The table below shows the reduction in referrals over the period April to 
December 2020 compared to the same period last year.   

 

Year  Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 

2019 4,385 4,738 4,134 4,847 3,855 3,959 3,964 3,954 3,297 19,045 

2020 800 1,035 2,242 2,098 2,564 2,737 2,927 3,034 2,913 11,980 

% difference -82% -78% -46% -57% -36% -31% -26% -23% -12% -37% 

 
3.5 GP referrals have stabilized since October and average 75-78% of pre-COVID levels; 

year to date referrals are at 63% compared to the same period last year. 
 

4. Diagnostics 

 
 4.1 Salford CCGs diagnostic waiting times are given in the table below.  The impact of 

COVID can be seen from April onwards.  As anticipated diagnostic waiting times 
started to improve as a result of COVID recovery plans being implemented but there 
has been a slight increase in waiting times in December. 

Page 83



 

                 

 
4.2 By comparison Salford CCG diagnostic performance in December 2019 was 10% 

(564) waiting over 6 weeks to be seen and 0.4% (24) waiting over 13 weeks. 
 
4.3 Of those waiting over 6 weeks in December, the vast majority of patients 2,408 (81%) 

were awaiting a test at SRFT and of these 50% were waiting for either an MRI scan 
(31%) or Non-Obstetric Ultrasound scan (19%).   

 
4.4 These diagnostic breach volumes were expected due to the cancellation of non-

urgent tests during the first wave of the pandemic and subsequent limited capacity 
since restarting.   It is expected that diagnostic waiting times, both locally and 
nationally will remain much longer during 2020/21 than they were previously.   

 
4.5 Listed below are actions SRFT are taking to recover diagnostic capacity: 
 

 Endoscopy activity is currently approximately 70% of last year’s activity and plans 
are in place to increase activity in line with NHS recovery trajectories 

 SRFT continue to use independent sector capacity at the Spire and Oaklands to 
deliver additional endoscopy sessions 

 Since July routine CT/MRI imaging has recommenced following four months of 
reduced activity when only urgent scans were being delivered on site; however as 
mentioned previously there are substantial backlogs to clear as services get back 
to pre-COVID capacity 

 The following actions to increase imaging capacity at SRFT are also being 
undertaken: 
 

o Scheduling additional waiting list initiative sessions to bring down waiting 
times and waiting lists 

o A second replacement 3T scanner is due in February 
o Some Salford radiology and MRI activity is currently being delivered on 

the North Manchester site and more has been scheduled there from the 
beginning of 2021 

o Work continues with regards securing the availability of an MRI pad in 
Salford to deliver additional local MRI activity 
 

 The difficulties resuming SRFT overnight sleep study tests, as previously reported 
to the October ACC meeting, have been resolved and this service is now being 
delivered at an alternative location 

 

5. Incomplete Pathways - 18 and 52 Week Referral to Treatment 

 
5.1 Pausing non-urgent care and the reduction in available bed capacity due to COVID 

admissions has increased the length of time patients are waiting for non-urgent 
treatment to start. 

Page 84



 

                 

 
5.2 Incomplete pathways: 18 weeks RTT 

In December 2020, 62% of patients (17,118) were seen within 18 weeks of referral 
against the 92% target.  This compares with 84% (21,710) in December 2019. 

 
5.3 Incomplete pathways: 52+ week RTT breaches 

Of those currently on a waiting list in December 1,363 were waiting more than 52 
weeks to be seen, the majority of which were waiting for treatments at Salford Royal 
(638) or Manchester Foundation Trust (410). This compares to 26 breaches for the 
full financial year 2019/20.  

 
5.4 Trauma and Orthopaedics (T&O), General Surgery and Oral Surgery account for 

43% of all 52 week waits in the North West Region. Oral Surgery has the highest 
proportion of 52+ week waits followed by plastic surgery and then T&O 

 
5.5 During February 2021 data quality issues surrounding the recording of 52 week waits 

at SRFT have been identified which are currently being investigated. 
 
5.6 The continuing high level of both 18 week and 52 week breach volumes were 

expected due to the cancellation of non-urgent NHS services in the first wave of the 
pandemic and as a consequence of subsequent waves and surges.  

 
5.7 Listed below are actions SRFT is taking to re-establish their in-patient, day case and 

out-patient capacity: 
 

Admitted Patients – Planned Overnight In-Patients 

 All but 4 theatres currently in use which were paused in January to release staff and 
space to accommodate increased capacity for the critical care surge. It is planned to 
re-open these theatres from mid-March 

 Clinical Prioritisation Group is in place to review all cases going to theatre to ensure 
prioritisation based on clinical urgency to minimise the risk of clinical harm from 
extended waiting times 

 SRFT are exploring whether injection lists can be run off-site (perhaps at Oaklands) 
to release capacity on the Salford site to focus on more complex / significant surgery 

 Ear Nose and Throat (ENT) services – SRFT are starting to make in-roads into their 
surgical waiting list and are managing the most urgent cases effectively, surgery 
continues at Rochdale Infirmary with patients being treated in priority order  

 T&O elective activity was suspended at Fairfield General Hospital in November with 
only limited day case activity taking place.  Theatres are due to reopen from mid-
March and patients are being scheduled again in priority order.   

 There has been no elective Orthopaedic activity at the Oaklands since the end of 
January and negotiations have commenced to restart this work as soon as possible 

 There has been a loss of capacity in gynaecology over the last couple of months due 
to sickness.  Staff are now returning to work on a phased approach and capacity will 
increase over the coming weeks.  Surgical activity has continued at Rochdale. 

 
Non-admitted - Day Cases and Out-patients 

 In April SRFT expect to complete building works on the extension of the Brooke 
Treatment Unit. This will give additional capacity to increase Neurological infusion 

Page 85



 

                 

numbers in a socially distanced environment, to help accelerate the backlog 
clearance and get back on track with treatment regimes 

 Neurology has completed their split of clinic templates into virtual and face-to-face, 
which is working well and has allowed some release of clinic rooms. Waiting times for 
Neurology are better than pre-COVID and continue to benefit from slightly reduced 
referral rates. 

 The same piece of work is underway in ENT. This is a service that has suffered from 
out-patient restrictions; many attendances need to be in person as patients undergo 
investigations and treatments in clinic settings, some of which are aerosol generating 
procedures. Revised clinic templates alongside the recent introduction of ‘air 
scrubbers’ are allowing an increased throughput in ENT clinics. 

 Local service developments such as Advice & Guidance (A&G) and Patient Initiated 
Follow-Up (PIFU) continue to be implemented for non-admitted patients at SRFT 

 A&G is used across the medical specialties and discussions around implementation 
are taking place across other Divisions. 

 These service developments are in line with the national requirement to accelerate 
outpatient recovery and implement rapid out-patient transformation to urgently tackle 
the backlog of patients needing care 

     

6. Greater Manchester (GM) Surgical Recovery and Prioritisation 
       
6.1 The GM surgical backlog has grown significantly during the pandemic. It is 

recognised that there is insufficient capacity across all providers to meet the NHS 
constitutional standards given this increased backlog. GM is therefore taking a risk-
based approach to the management of waiting lists. It is anticipated it may take a 
number of years to fully recover.  

 
6.2 As a result, GM are establishing a task force and developing an overarching strategy 

for surgical recovery and prioritisation ensuring equity and the most effective use of 
capacity for clinical priorities, ensuring the patients in most need are given the care 
they require. 

 
6.3 Given the GM context and the overall position demonstrating significant increases in 

some specialist areas it is proposed the overall strategy for elective recovery is 
focused on two specific work streams: 

 

 An overall approach to ensuring the most effective use of available workforce, 
capacity and equity across GM  

 GM Collaborative approach to a small number of clinical specialty priorities based on 
a GM analysis (adopting the system wide approach to recovery previously taken to 
endoscopy) 

 
6.4  Although details are not yet available it is understood that there will also be a national 

/ regional approach to recovery. The GM strategy will need to dovetail into this, once 
details are available. 

 
6.5 Key to early restoration of elective surgical activity will be the identification of a small 

number of specialty areas that will deliver the greatest system benefit. The current 
data suggests gynaecology, general surgery and ENT are three specialties that have 
seen the greatest increase in waiting list size that could be considered for this type of 

Page 86



 

                 

approach. It is noted gastroenterology has also seen significant increases in waiting 
list size but is being tackled through the existing GM endoscopy recovery 
programme. 

 
 

7. Recommendations 
 
  7.1    Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to: 
 

 Note the Scheduled Care Update report  

 Note Salford CCGs performance against Scheduled Care national standards and 
COVID recovery plans 

 Note the GM approach to surgical recovery and prioritisation 

 Provide any feedback or comments on the content of the report  
 
 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Adult Commissioning Committee 

Part 1 

Agenda item number: 9 

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information  

10 March 2021  

Report of:   Karen Proctor/Charlotte Ramsden 

Date of paper:  25 February 2021 

Subject:   Adult Commissioning Report 

In case of query please contact:  Harry Golby 

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to) 

Priority Selection 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research:   

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services): 

X 

Children’s and Maternity Services:   

Primary Care:   

Enabling Transformation:   

 

 

Purpose of paper:  

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



 

This paper provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments and progress 

 

Further explanatory information required 

Question Answer 

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group? 

This paper provides an overview of a 
number of key or emerging areas of 
commissioning and provision relating to 
adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast 
of developments and progress 

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated? 

N/A 

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated? 

N/A 

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them? 

N/A 

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper. 

N/A 

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper. 

 

N/A 

Footnote:  Members of Adult Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. 
Once papers are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 90



 

   

 

 

 

Document development 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Public engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Clinical engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)? 

  X   

P
age 91



 

   

 

 

 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 

(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed)  

  X   

Legal advice sought 
 

 

 X   

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

  X   

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work 

P
age 92



 

   

 

 

 

Adult Commissioning Committee Report 

1. Executive summary 

This report provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments. 

 

Items in this month’s report include: 

 

 VCSE Voices Matters Extension 

 Unscheduled Care Redesign  

 

 

2. VCSE Voices Matters Extension 

2.1. Salford’s voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) sector is a key strategic 
partner in health, social care and wellbeing activities to support the delivery of the Locality 
Plan. 

2.2. In recognition of this the VCSE Voices Matter initiative has been developed over 
several years.  This leads to consistent and appropriate representation of the sector at 
various key forums and events through the VOCAL model.  In 2019 VCSE Voices Matters 
was extended and enhanced to include (integrated) neighbourhood work.  In January 2020 
the Adults Advisory Board considered the impact of the programme and supported an 
extension of the initiative into 2020/21.   

2.3. During 2020/21 Salford’s VCSE sector has played a critical role in the local response 
to the pandemic supporting our residents through, for example, the development of the 
Spirit of Salford Network, feeding into the Health & Adult Social Care COVID Co-ordination 
Group and assisting the local COVID vaccination programme.  Moving forward the VCSE 
sector will have an equally important role to play as partners seek to “Build Back Better”.   

2.4. The VCSE Voices Matter initiative is one relatively small, but important, element of 
the CCG’s and City Council’s overall investment into the local VCSE sector.  It costs 
approximately £80k per annum.  This investment supports a full time Salford Together 
VCSE Partnership Lead post in Salford Community & Voluntary Services (CVS) and various 
support, training, communications and allowances to enable wider VCSE representation at 
key forums and events.   

Page 93



 

   

 

 

 

2.5. The VCSE Voices Matter initiative is commissioned via the Service Level Agreement 
between the CCG and CVS.  Commissioners intend to undertake a strategic review of the 
various different funding streams into the VCSE sector via CVS however this review has not 
yet commenced due to need to focus on the immediate issues associated with the 
pandemic. 

2.6. Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note an extension to the VCSE Voices 
Matter initiative until the end of 2021/22 has been agreed through officer delegated limits. 

     

 

3. Urgent Care Redesign 

3.1. In November 2020 Adult Commissioning Committee received an update on the 
development of an urgent care by appointment system in Salford.  The committee 
supported the continued development of programme and noted that a business case was 
being prepared for presentation to a future meeting of the Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee. 

3.2. The pilot of the new model is continuing to be delivered and evolve in Salford.  The 
pre-Emergency Department streaming service commenced in August 2020 and continues 
to care for approximately 40 patients a day.  The “call before you attend” element of the 
service went live on 22 October 2020 and, by the start of February, 1,247 patients had used 
the service.  The service is funded non-recurrently until May 2021. 

3.3. Work on the business case is progressing.  A Strategic Outline Case for the new 
model of care is due to be presented to Primary Care Commissioning Committee on 30 
March 2021.  Subject to support from that committee a full business case will be finalised 
and, following further engagement with stakeholders within the city, presented to Primary 
Care Commissioning Committee in May 2021.   

 

7. Recommendations 

7.1 The Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a 
number of key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health 
and care.  

Name: Harry Golby 

Job title: Deputy Director of Commissioning, CCG 

 

Page 94


	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 13th January 2021
	4 Salford Market Development Strategy
	Salford Market Development Strategy 2020-25 Final  DRAFT v0.7 ACC

	5 Finance Report
	6 Mental Health Update
	MH UPDATE FEB 2021 v4

	7 Cancer Performance Update
	8 Scheduled Care Update
	9 Adult Commissioning Report

